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DISCLAIMER

In this annual report we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to
comprehend our prospects and take informed investment decisions. This report and other
statements - written and oral - that we periodically make contain forward-looking statements that
set out anticipated results based on the management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried
wherever possible to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’,
‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar substance in connection with

any discussion of future performance.

We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe
we have been prudent in our assumptions. The achievement of results is subject to risks,
uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties
materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary

materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers should bear this in mind.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a

result of new information, future events or otherwise.




Notice of 29" Annual General Meeting of Impex Ferro Tech Limited

(Company is under CIRP)

BACKGROUND:

All the stakeholders are informed that after the closure of the financial year 2023-24, the Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) with respect to the Impex Ferro Tech Limited commenced under
the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”) and IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process
for Corporate Persons) Regulations, 2016 (“CIRP Regulations”) vide order dated 2nd May 2024 passed by the
Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”), pursuant to an application filed by
Auroma Coke Limited under Section 9 of the IBC. Through the said order dated 2nd May 2024 of the NCLT,
Mr. Rajiv Kumar Agarwal (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00552/2017-2018/10982) was appointed
as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) of the Corporate Debtor. Further pursuant to the application
filed IA (Companies Act)/133(KB) 2024), under section 22(3)(b) of the code by the Committee of Creditor,
Mr Ashok Kumar Sarawagi has been appointed as a Resolution professional (RP) by order of Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”) dated 12th July 2024.

Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement Order and in consonance with the stipulation contained in
Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended and the same
are vested and exercised at present by Mr. Ashok Kumar Sarawagi, Resolution Professional (“RP”) w.e.f. 12th
July, 2024.

The company’s Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP") namely Company Secretary (CS) and Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) had resigned on 11/04/2024. The Managing Director remains unapproachable. Due to this,
access to several statutory records and registers has been significantly limited. Despite best efforts, RP has
been able to retrieve only a partial set of records with the assistance of former employees, employees of other
group entities of the Company, and certain external consultants who were previously associated with the
Company. The Annual Financial Results could not be finalised on due time due to non-cooperation of
personnel of the corporate debtor. The petition for extension of holding AGM was filed before NCLT,
Kolkata. The petition further got approved vide NCLT order no: IA(COMPANIES.ACT)/83(KB)2025 dated
22nd April, 2025. Thus, your company Resolution Professional is convening the AGM accordingly.

NOTICE is hereby given that the 29th Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company will be held
on Tuesday, 10th June, 2025 at 3.00 P.M. through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means
(VC/OAVM) to transact the following businesses. The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the
corporate office of the Company at SKP House, 132A, S. P. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata-700026.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 and the report of the Auditors’ & Directors’ thereon.
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

The

Company have no Special Business to conduct.

For Impex Ferro Tech Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Sarawagi

Resolution Professional of M/s Impex Ferro Tech Limited

IBBI Registration No.: IBBI/TPA-001/IP-P00171/2017-18/10340
Authorization for Assignment (“AFA”): AA1/10340/02/300625/107208
AFA Validity: June 30, 2025

Place: Kolkata

Date: 15 May, 2025

NOTES:

1.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (the “MCA”) vide its General Circulars No. 14/2020, No. 17/2020, No.
20/2020 and No. 02/2021 dated 8th April, 2020, 13th April, 2020, 5th May, 2020 and 13th January, 2021
respectively (hereinafter, collectively referred as the “MCA Circulars”) has permitted the holding of
Annual General Meeting (AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means
(OAVM), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th
January, 2021 read with Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/ 2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 (SEBI
Circulars) has granted relaxation in respect of sending physical copies of annual report to the

shareholders and requirement of proxy for general meetings held through electronic mode.

The members can join AGM in VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the meeting by following the procedure for attending the meeting as mentioned
further in the Notice.

Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the
quorum u/s 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

There is only one agenda in the form of ordinary business so The Explanatory Statement pursuant to

section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) with respect to item nos.1of the notice is not required.

The ‘Cut-off Date’ for determining members entitled to facility of voting by remote e-voting as well as
e-voting during the AGM has been fixed for Tuesday, 10 June, 2025 following Regulation 44 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Voting rights of the Shareholders
(for voting through remote e-voting or by e-voting during the AGM) shall be in proportion to their share
of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the Cut-off Date.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, no Route Map is being provided with the Notice.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Notice of 29th AGM along with
Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 will also be available on the website of the Company at
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

www.impexferrotech.com and on the website of the Stock Exchanges, i.e. BSE Limited (BSE) at
www.bseindia.com and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) at www.nseindia.com and on

the website of the CDSL at www.evotingindia.com.

M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. having its registered office at 23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor,
Kolkata — 700001 is appointed as the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA) for its share registry

(both physical as well as electronic).

Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not updated their latest email address in the

records with the Company/Transfer Agents and their Depository Participants are requested to update

the same at the earliest by writing to the Company’s RTA at mdplc@yahoo.com. Members are requested
to submit request letter mentioning the folio no. and name of shareholder along with scanned copy of the
Share Certificate (front and back) and self-attested copy of PAN card for updation of email address.
Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register/update their email addresses

with their Depository Participants.

Members who hold shares in physical mode in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the
same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to Company’s Registrar and Share

Transfer Agent, for consolidation into a single folio.

In case of Joint-holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per

the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote during the AGM.

KYC and Nomination Facility: In order to enhance the ease of doing business for investors in the securities
market, SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/ HO/MIRSD/MIRSD RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November
3, 2021, read together with the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687
dated December 14, 2021 (hereinafter, collectively referred as the “SEBI KYC Circulars”) mandated
furnishing of PAN, full KYC details and Nomination by the holders of physical securities.

Accordingly, Members are hereby requested to kindly comply with the SEBI KYC Circulars.

In accordance with the applicable Circulars, electronic copies of the Annual Report and this Notice,
inter-alia, indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with instructions to attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM are being sent by email to those Members whose email addresses have been made
available to the Company/ Depository Participants.

Members holding shares in dematerialiased form are requested to intimate changes, if any, with their

relevant Depository Participants.

As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form w.e.f 1st April,
2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this
and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members
holding physical forms are requested to convert their holding to dematerialized form. Members can
contact the Company or to the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent, Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd.

for assistance in this regard.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its circular dated 20th April, 2018 has mandated
registration of Permanent Account Number (PAN) and bank account details for all members holding

shares in physical form. Therefore, the members are requested to submit their PAN and bank account
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

details to the Company at its corporate office or to Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company. In this regard, the members are requested to submit a
duly signed letter along with self-attested copy of PAN Card(s) of all the registered members (including
joint holders). Members are also requested to submit original cancelled cheque, bearing the name of the
sole/first holder. In case of inability to provide the original cancelled cheque, a copy of bank
passbook/statement of the sole/first holder duly attested by the bank, not being a date earlier than one
month may be provided. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to submit the aforesaid

documents to their respective Depository Participants (DPs).

The Company has provided the facility to the Members to exercise their right to vote by electronic
means both through remote e-voting and e-voting during the AGM. The process of remote e-voting
with necessary user id and password is given in the subsequent paragraphs. Such remote e-voting facility
is in addition to e-voting that will take place at the 29th AGM being held through VC/OAVM.

Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after the
dispatch of the AGM Notice and holds shares as on the Cut-off Date i.e., Tuesday, 3rd June, 2025 may
obtain the Login ID and Password by sending a request at www.evotingindia.com. However, if you are
already registered with CDSL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing User ID and Password
for casting your vote. If you have forgotten your password, you may reset your password by using

"Forgot User Details/Password" option available on www.evotingindia.com.

Members joining the meeting through VC/OAVM, who have not cast their vote by means of remote e-
voting, shall be able to exercise their right to vote through e-voting at the AGM. The Members who
have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also join the AGM through VC/OAVM

but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India, has introduced a ‘Green Initiative in
Corporate Governance’ by allowing paperless compliances by the Companies for service of documents
to their members through electronic mode, which will be in compliance with section 20 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder.

Since the securities of the Company are compulsorily tradable in electronic form, to ensure better
investor service and elimination of risk of holding securities in physical form, it is requested that the

members holding shares in physical form to get their shares dematerialised at the earliest.

PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS/SEEK CLARIFICATIONS WITH RESPECT TO ANNUAL
REPORT:

As the AGM is being conducted through VC/OAVM, members are encouraged to express their
views/send their queries at least ten (10) days in advance before the meeting mentioning their name, DP

Id and Client Id/Folio No., e-mail id, mobile number at cs@impexferrotech.com. The same will be

replied by the Company suitably.

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their

name, DP Id and Client Id / Folio No., PAN, mobile number at cs@impexferrotech.com on or before

Tuesday, 3rd June, 2025. Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be
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allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. Speakers are requested to submit their

questions at the time of registration, to enable the Company to respond appropriately.

24. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as

appropriate, to ensure the smooth conduct of the AGM.

25. In compliance with provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) rules, 2014 and as amended from time to time read with Regulation
44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial
Standards — 2 (SS-2) on General Meetings, the members are informed that the Company is pleased to
offer e-voting facility to cast their vote electronically. The Company has made necessary arrangement

with the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) to facilitate e-voting.

The e-voting facility is available at the link www.evotingindia.com vide the EVSN 250515003

The e-voting facility will be available during the following voting period:

Commencement of e-voting From : 9:00 a.m. of 07th June, 2025
End of e-voting Upto : 5:00 p.m. of 09th June, 2025

E-voting shall not be allowed beyond 5.00 p.m. of 09th June, 2025.

The detailed procedure is mentioned below. For the aforesaid purpose the Company has appointed CS
Abhijeet Jain of M/s. A] & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries for scrutinizing the e-voting

process in a true and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer will make, not later than two days from the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated
Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Board of Directors or a
person authorized in writing, who shall countersign the same.

The Board or the person authorized in writing forthwith on receipt of the consolidated Scrutinizer's
Report, declare the results of the voting. The Results declared, along with the Scrutinizer's Report, shall
be placed on the Company's website www.impexferrotech.com and on the website of CDSL

www.evotingindia.com immediately after their declaration and communicated to the Stock Exchanges
where the Company is listed viz. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolution(s) set out in the Notice shall be deemed
to be passed on the date of the AGM.

26. PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS DURING THE AGM

1. The general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, Circular No.17/2020
dated 13th April, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020. The forthcoming AGM will
thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence,
Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and regulation 44 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars
dated 8th April, 2020, 13th April, 2020 and 5th May, 2020 the Company is providing facility of
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remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. The facility
of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the
AGM will be provided by CDSL.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000
members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc., who are allowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of ascertaining the quorum under section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend
and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of section 112
and section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President of
India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast
their votes through e-voting.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020,
the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.impexferrotech.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges
ie. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and

www.nseindia.com respectively. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL
(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM/EGM) i.e.

www.evotingindia.com.
The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 and MCA Circular
No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020.

In continuation of this Ministry’s General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 5th May, 2020 and after due
examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs were due to be held in the year
2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct their AGMs on or before 31.12.2021, in accordance
with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General Circular No. 20/2020 as per
MCA circular no. 02/2021 dated 13th January,2021.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE

AS UNDER:

Step1:  Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders

holding shares in demat mode.

Step2:  Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical

@

mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

The voting period begins on 07th June, 2025 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 09th June, 2025 at 5.00 p.m.
During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 03th June, 2025 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
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(id)

(i)

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at
the meeting venue.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility
to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that
the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible
level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user
IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants.
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the
ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and
convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step1:  Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders

(iv)

holding shares in demat mode.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December, 2020 on
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of | Login Method
shareholders

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach

Individual e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to
Shar‘eholders login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
holding visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System
securities in Myeasi.

Demat mode

with CDSL 2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
Depository option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user
will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
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3)

4)

CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/Evoting Login The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will

be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also
able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

1)

2)

3)

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.
Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able
to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https:/eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.

After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click

on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after

successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
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login through | company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
their to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Depository Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
Participants

(DP)

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can
Demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at
toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can
Demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical
mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with
the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) Ifyouare holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted
on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders
holding shares in Demat.

Annual Report 2023-24 | 9


mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
(ix)
()

(xd)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact
Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy

Details format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company records
OR in order to login.

Date of Birth | e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or

(DOB) company, please enter the member id / folio number in the

Dividend Bank details field.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK?, else to change your vote,
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting
page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made
available to scrutinizer for verification.

Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote Voting only.
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e Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates”
module.

e A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

e After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
to vote on.

e The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any

wrong mapping.

e [t is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which

they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system
for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alternatively Non-Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board

Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz;
cs@impexferrotech.com (designated email address by company), if they have voted from individual

tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM AND E-

VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1.

The procedure for attending meeting and e-voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions
mentioned above for e-voting.

The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

Shareholders who have voted through remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However,
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / Tabs for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It
is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid
glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to meeting mentioning
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@impexferrotech.com.

The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in
advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id,

mobile number at cs@impexferrotech.com. These queries will be replied to by the Company suitably by
email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting.
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9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall
be eligible to vote through e-voting system available during the AGM.

10. Ifany votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by
such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available
only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH
THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical Shareholders - please provide necessary details like folio no., name of the shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by e-mail to Company at cs@impexferrotech.com.

2. For Demat Shareholders - please update your email id and mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat Shareholders — please update your email id and mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM and e-voting from the CDSL e-voting System,
you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh
Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email

to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call. toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

For Impex Ferro Tech Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Sarawagi

Resolution Professional of M/s Impex Ferro Tech Limited

IBBI Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00171/2017-18/10340
Authorization for Assignment (“AFA”): AA1/10340/02/300625/107208
AFA Validity: June 30, 2025
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Report by Resolution Professional (“RP”)

Note: After the closure of the financial year 2023-24, The Hon'ble National Company law
Tribunal, Kolkata Bench has admitted the petition filed by operational creditor M/s Auroma Coke
Limited under Section 9 of the IBC. Through the said order dated 2nd May 2024 of the NCLT, Mr.
Rajiv Kumar Agarwal (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00552/2017-2018/10982) was
appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) of the Corporate Debtor. Pursuant to the
Insolvency Commencement Order and in consonance with the stipulation contained in Section
17 of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended w.e.f.
02/05/2024.Further pursuant to the application filed IA (Companies Act)/133(KB)2024), under
section 22(3)(b) of the code by the Committee of Creditor, Mr Ashok Kumar Sarawagi has been
appointed as a Resolution professional(RP) by order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”) dated 12th July 2024.

Since all the powers of the existing Board of Directors have been suspended w.e.f. 02/05/2024,
instead of Board of Directors, Resolution Professional is presenting this report to the Members of
the Company as required under section 134 of Companies Act, 2013,

To The Shareholders,

Resolution Professional presents the 29th Annual Report of the Company together with Audited
Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The Company’s financial performance for the year ended 31st March, 2024 is summarized below:
Amount in Rs. in Lacs

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Revenue from Operations (net) 2,750.21 14,338.17
Other Income 1,142.71 165.22
Total Revenue 3,892.92 14503.39
Profit before Finance Cost, Depreciation and Tax (3,635.57) (3,907.24)
Less: Depreciation & Amortisation 651.44 660.95
Less: Finance Cost 1.28 0.96
Less: Tax Expenses = -
Net Profit after Tax (2,982.85) (3,359.78)
Less: Exceptional Item - 1,209.37
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (net of Tax) 5.25 (7.80)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (2,988.10) (3,367.58)

Note: Figures of the previous year has been re-grouped/revised wherever necessary.

2. CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP)

After the closure of the Financial year 2023-24, The Hon'ble National Company law Tribunal,
Kolkata Bench has admitted the petition filed by M/s Auroma Coke Limited under Section 9 of
the IBC in its capacity as operational creditor of the company for its claimed outstanding of
Rs.2,74,57,778/-(Rupees Two crore Seventy four lakhs fifty seven thousand Seven hundred
Seventy eight only).
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The Hon'ble National Company law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench has admitted the petition filed by
operational creditor M/s Auroma Coke Limited under Section 9 of the IBC. Through the said
order dated 2nd May 2024 of the NCLT, Mr. Rajiv Kumar Agarwal (IBBI Registration No.
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00552/2017-2018/10982) was appointed as the Interim Resolution Professional
(“IRP”) of the Corporate Debtor. Further pursuant to the application filed IA (Companies
Act)/133(KB)2024) , under section 22(3)(b) of the code by the Committee of Creditor, Mr Ashok
Kumar Sarawagi has been appointed as a Resolution professional(RP) by order of Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”) dated 12th July 2024.

3. FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Company has achieved Net Sales/Revenue from operation of
Rs. 2,750.21 Lacs as against Rs. 14,338.17 Lacs in previous year registering a decrease of 80.82%.
The Company incurred a loss of Rs. 2,982.85 Lacs as against loss of Rs. 3,359.78 Lacs in the
previous year.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve during the financial year
2023-24.

5. DIVIDEND
No dividend has been recommended for the financial year FY 2023-24, since Company is under
CIRP.

6. BOARD MEETINGS
The Board met six (6) times during the year under review FY 2023-24, the details of which are

given in the Corporate Governance Report that forms part of this Annual Report.

7. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION
There was no change in the Share Capital and Memorandum of Association and Articles of

Association of the Company during the financial year 2023-24.

8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAT PERSONNEL
In consonance with the stipulation contained in Section 28 of the IBC, 2016, any change in the
management of the Corporate Debtor shall not be made without prior approval of the Committee

of Creditors. No Directors have proposed to be appointed/re-appointed, hence, appointment/ re-
appointment of the Directors are not recommended at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
After the closure of the FY 2023-24, on 2 May 2024, the powers of Board of the Directors have
been suspended, as company is admitted into CIRP under Insolvency &Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
Further, pursuant to Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors stand
suspended during the continuance of the CIRP. The provisions of Section 238 of the IBC, 2016
override other applicable laws which are in contravention to the provisions of the code.

After the closure of FY, director named Sujata Agarwal has resigned from post of Director wef
03/03/2025 citing personal reason.

Key Managerial Personnel’s (KMPs): Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the KMP’s of the Company Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Company Secretary(CS)
has resigned w.e.f 11/04/2024.Further as stated above, after the closure of FY 2023-24, pursuant to
the Insolvency Commencement Order and in consonance with the stipulation contained in
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Section 17 of the IBC, 2016, the powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended and the same
are being exercised by the Resolution Professional w.e.f. 2nd May, 2024.

9. DIRECTORS/MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, based on internal financial controls, work

performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors, the reviews performed by the

management that for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, to the best of knowledge the

confirmation is hereby given for the Company that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgements and estimates
made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that
period;

¢) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a “going concern” basis;

e) internal financial controls were laid down by the company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) proper systems have been devise to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

During the year under review i.e. FY 2023-24, the directors were managing the affairs of the
company After the closure of the FY 2023-24, the powers of the Board of Directors stand
suspended as company is admitted into CIRP under Insolvency &Bankruptcy Code, 2016 with
effect from 0274 May, 2024.

10. CREDIT RATING
During the year under review Credit Rating has not been done.

11. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
During the year under review, no Company has become or ceased to exist as the subsidiary of

the Company. The Company has also not entered into any Joint Venture nor become an
Associate Company during the year under review.

12. WEB ADDRESS OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules made
thereunder, the extract of Annual Return of the Company has been disclosed on the website of

the Company at http://www.impexferrotech.com.

13. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits or unclaimed amount within the meaning of section
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) rules, 2014.

14. INSURANCE
The insurance coverage on properties and insurable assets and interests of the Company, like
building, plant and machinery and stocks, among others has expired on 13/06/2023.
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15. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
The Business Responsibility Report as per Regulations 34(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations &

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is not applicable to the Company as the Company
does not fall under top 500 listed companies on the basis of market capitalization.

16. DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY
Pursuant to Regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, top 500 listed companies based on market capitalization are required to

formulate a Dividend Distribution Policy. Accordingly, the Company is not required to formulate
the Dividend Distribution Policy.

17. AUDIT AND AUDITORS

(a). STATUTORY AUDITOR
For the FY 2023-24, the statutory auditor of the company were M/s. ]J. B. S. & Associates,
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 323734E). Since the company is admitted under CIRP, RP with
approval of the Committee of Creditors(“COC”) has appointed M/s V.K.Tulsyan & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 326740E) as statutory auditor of the company for FY 2024-25.
The Auditors have confirmed that they fulfil the criteria for appointment as Auditor of the
Company as prescribed under the Act and the Rules framed thereunder.

(b). STATUTORY AUDITOR OBSERVATION/QUALIFICATION AND BOARD RESPONSE
The Statutory Auditor has put the qualification remarks in his report, the detail of which is
given in Audit Report forming part of this Annual report. Certain issues relating to Company’s
expenses, non-provision of interest expense, certain balances and uncertainty relating to the
going concern aspects is subject matter of Qualification in the Audit Report.

(c). COST AUDITOR
In terms of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 14 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Cost Audit Report is not applicable to the Company for the FY
2023-24.

(d). SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
The Committee of creditors has appointed M/s. A ] & ASSOCIATES as Secretarial Auditor of
the Company as per requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. For FY
2023-24, the report of the Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 is enclosed as Annexure-I to this
report.

(e). SECRETARIAL AUDITOR QUALIFICATIONS AND RESPONSE
The Secretarial Auditor has observed non-compliance under Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
Regulations and raised his observations, the details of which is given in Form MR-3 enclosed
as Annexure-I

Non-Compliance observed under Companies Act, 2013
1. Form MGT 14 reporting certain transactions carried out in the meetings of the Board has
not been filed under section 179(3) read with section 117 w.rt the
resolution(s)/agreement(s) approved thereof.
2. In Form DPT 3 filed with MCA, the data filled seems to be incorrect.
3. The company has an Advance from Customers in the books unappropriated within a
period of 365 days from the date of acceptance of such advance, thereby violating the

provisions of section 73 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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The website of the company is not updated.

The company is in default of filing statutory forms with MCA pertaining to dues of
MSME.

MGT 14 w.r.t. all the resolutions passed in the Annual General Meeting is not filed. It was
required to file all the resolutions passed in AGM with MCA as the meeting was held to
VC/OAVM.

Statutory Register required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 2013 are not
updated.

There has been delay in filing observed in some forms filed with MCA.

The Annual Report posted on the website for the FY 2022-23 is incomplete as it doesn’t

have attached the Annexure to the Secretarial Compliance Report.

Non-Compliance observed under SEBI Regulations:

1.

10.

Regulation 47 — for quarter ended September 2023. The financial result was published
beyond 48 hours as required under regulation 47.

Regulation 40(9) — Compliance Certificate as submitted with BSE for the financial year
ended 31.03.2024 has been wrongly mentioned as 31.12.2024. This could be typographical
error.

Regulation 23(9) — The company has disclosed the related party transactions to the
Exchange (i.e., BSE and NSE) on 14.11.2023, while the date of publication of its financial
result was on 16.11.2023.

No document found w.r.t. compliance of Regulation 44(3) w.r.t. submission of voting
Results to Stack Exchange(s).

No documents found w.r.t. intimation of a Board meeting where decision of Shutdown of
Plant and Capital Expenditure has been approved, nor the outcome of such meeting.
Regulation 30(6): No intimation w.r.t. appointment of Additional Director/Director was
made to the exchange(s).

The company has received queries from NSE w.r.t. number of directors being less than 6
and the composition of the Board of Directors not in line with SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015. The company has subsequently complied with the same.

Regulation 46 — The website of the company was not updated as required under the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. Many important documents are found not to be uploaded in
the website viz., Scrutinizers’ Report for the AGM held for the year 2023, Quarterly
Results, Quarterly Shareholding Pattern and other quarterly compliances for the quarter
ended 31% March, 2024 onwards, Copy of Memorandum of Association, Details of
familiarisation programmes imparted to independent directors etc.

Regulation 74(5) of the SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 — The
company was required to submit the certificate stated in this regulation within 15 days of
end of each quarter. The delay has been observed in the in almost every quarter during
2023-24.

We have not received the information from the company regarding the Continual
Disclosures and Disclosure of Encumbered Shares has been received from the

promoters/other persons or not, as required under regulation 30 and 31 of SEBI
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(®.

(8)-

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (as amended). So we
are unable to give opinion whether the company has complied with the respective
regulation or not.

11. No documents with regards to Compliance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 (as amended) was made available for verification, thus no comments on
its compliance is offered.

12. A fine has been imposed by the BSE for non-compliance of regulation 23(9) for the
quarter ended Sep’ 23 for a sum of Rs. 10,000 and non-compliance of regulation 33 for the
quarter ended Sep’ 22 and Dec’ 22 for a sum of Rs. 680,000 and Rs. 220,000 respectively
plus GST, as per the claim filed by BSE.

13. A fine has been imposed by the NSE for non-compliance of regulation 23(9) for the
quarter ended Sep’ 23 for a sum of Rs. 10,000 and non-compliance of regulation 33 for the
quarter ended Sep’ 22 for a sum of Rs. 680,000 plus GST, as per the claim filed by NSE.

14. We are unable to comment upon the compliance required to be made within stipulated
time after the conclusion of the Board meeting, due to unavailability of minutes.

15. We are unable to comment upon whether any prior intimation and/or outcome of the
Board Meeting was required to be given for any agenda item under the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 due to unavailability of the notice for such meeting and minutes
thereof.

Our comment is as under:

The Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP"), including the Company Secretary and Chief Financial
Officer, had resigned before the commencement of the CIRP, and the Managing Director
remains unapproachable. Due to this, access to several statutory records and registers has been
significantly limited. Despite best efforts, RP have been able to retrieve only a partial set of
records with the assistance of former employees, employees of other group entities of the
Company, and certain external consultants who were previously associated with the Company.
Despite the constraints, RP have made every possible effort to facilitate audit process and
ensure compliance to the extent feasible. Moreover, at present the Company has no business
operations. It is been informed that the manufacturing plant of the company has remained
non-operational since October 2022. The financial condition of the Company has deteriorated
significantly, making it difficult to maintain proper compliance under various laws.

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

Pursuant to SEBI Circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 and
Regulation 24(A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Secretarial Compliance Report for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2024 issued by M/s. A ] & ASSOCIATES, (Prop. Mr. Abhijeet
Jain), Practicing Company Secretary is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure-II to this
report. The Secretarial Compliance Report does contain qualifications, reservation or adverse
remarks, the detail of which is given in Secretarial Compliance Report in Annexure-II.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

For the FY 2023-24, the internal auditor of the company were M/s. N.R. & Associates, Cost
Accountants (FRN: 102903) Since the company is admitted under CIRP, RP with approval of
the Committee of Creditors(“COC”) has appointed M/s Naresh Jagannath & Co. as Internal
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2024-25
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18. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM

For the FY 2023-24, your Company has adequate systems of internal financial controls in place
with reference to financial statements, which is commensurate with its size and the nature of its
operations. The adequacy and effectiveness of Internal Financial Controls have been endorsed by

the Internal Auditor and the Statutory Auditors. The Statutory Auditor of the Company has
audited the IFC over Financial Reporting and their Audit Report is annexed to the Independent
Auditors’ Report under Financial Statements. The report of the Independent Statutory Auditors in
the annexure to their Audit Report does not contain any adverse observations.

19. DETAILS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL AND EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under section 134(3)(q),

197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of the Board’s Report as provided

in Annexure-III.

20. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO

A statement giving details of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign

Exchange Earning and Outgo as required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013

read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) rules 2014, is annexed to this report as Annexure-
IV.

21. DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT
The Board of Directors before initiation of CIRP against the Company had formulated a Code of

Conduct for the Board Members and Senior Management of the Company, which has been posted
on the website of the Company. RP has not come across any declaration or confirmation of Code
of Conduct from any member of Board for FY2023-24

22. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING
The Company already had a structured Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading, with a

view to regulate trading insecurities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company.
The Code has been streamlined to keep parity with the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2018 and be named as ‘Code of Conduct for
Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insiders’ which is also displayed on the
website of the Company www.impexferrotech.com.

The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase
or sale of Company’s shares by the Directors and the designated employees while in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when

the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the Code. RP has
not come across declaration or confirmation from any member of Board of Directors for FY 2023-
24.

23. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/COURTS/
TRIBUNALS

CIRP Process against the company under IBC,2016: As informed above, after the closure of the

financial year 2023-24, The Hon'ble National Company law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench has admitted

the petition filed by operational creditor M/s Auroma Coke Limited under Section 9 of the IBC.

Through the said order dated 2nd May 2024 of the NCLT, Mr. Rajiv Kumar Agarwal (IBBI
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Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00552/2017-2018/10982) was appointed as the Interim
Resolution Professional (“IRP”) of the Corporate Debtor. All the existing Board of Directors has been
suspended w.ef. 02/05/2024. Further pursuant to the application filed IA (Companies
Act)/133(KB)2024), under section 22(3)(b) of the code by the Committee of Creditor, Mr Ashok
Kumar Sarawagi has been appointed as a Resolution professional(RP) by order of Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”) dated 12th July 2024.

Attachment order of Directorate of Enforcement(ED): The assets of the corporate debtors have
been attached vide Provisional Attachment order no 07/2021 dated 31/03/2021 under sub-section
1 of Section 5 of the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 to the extent to the value of
Rs.6,60,44,745.40 of the immovable property The said Provisional Attachment order got
confirmed by Ld. Adjudicating Authority vide order dated 09.11.2021. The same was then
challenged by the company before the Hon’ble Appellate Tribunal of PMLA on 23.12.2021 vide
FPA-PMLA-4373/KOL/2021. The said appeal was dismissed on 03/10/23 for non-appearance. RP
on advice from lawyer/consultant has sought COC approval to file for application for restoration
of the appeal. The same has been approved by COC and the application has been duly filed as on
date.

24. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE COMPANY
e The Company at present has no income generating business operations, and its plant has
remained non-operational since October 2022. The financial condition of the Company has

deteriorated significantly, making it difficult to maintain proper compliance under various
laws.

e The Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP"), including the Company Secretary and Chief
Financial Officer, had resigned before the commencement of the CIRP, and the Managing
Director remains unapproachable

e The future of the company depends upon the outcome of ongoing CIRP.

25. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013.

26. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
A disclosure of related party relationship and transactions as per AS-18 is given in the notes to the
Financial Statement in the Annual Accounts of the Company. The report of the Independent

Statutory Auditors in their Audit Report does not contain any adverse observations.

As per the records, during the year, the Company had not entered into any
contract/arrangement/transaction with related parties which could be considered material in
accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions between
the Company and the Directors, the management, or the relatives except for those disclosed in the
Financial Statements. Accordingly, particulars of contracts or arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form
AQOC-2 (Annexure V) is NIL

27. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company has a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and their remuneration. A note on Remuneration Policy has been made a part of the Corporate
Governance Report. As Company is in CIRP so all the powers of the Board of Directors are
suspended w.e.f. 027 May 2024 so above information is only for the FY 2023-24.
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28. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Company has a defined Risk Management framework to identify, assess, monitor and

mitigate various risks to key business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and
functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. The Risk
Management Policy provides for identification of risk, its assessment and procedures to minimize
risk. The policy has to periodically reviewed to ensure that the executive management controls
the risk as per decided policy. As Company is in CIRP so all the powers of the Board of Directors
are suspended w.e.f. 027 May 2024 so above information is only for the FY 2023-24

29. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF EMPLOYEE AT WORKPLACE
The Company has a policy on Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of any employee at workplace. The Internal Complaint Committee will redress

complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The details related to complaints pertaining to
sexual harassment during the financial year 2023-24 is covered under the Corporate Governance
Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

30. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER
SECTION 149(6)

After the closure of FY 2023-24, the company is admitted under CIRP. RP has not came across

any declarations from Independent Director that they meet the criteria of Independence as

prescribed under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

with the Stock Exchanges due to non-availability of them.

31. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has to keep its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its
management and operations and provides an overall industry perspective as well as issues being
faced by the Industry. The familiarisation programmes policy and details of familiarisation
programme provided to the Directors of the Company need to be available on the Company’s
website www.impexferrotech.com. However No documents pertaining to the familiarisation

programme was updated on website for FY 2023-24.

32. AUDIT COMMITTEE

Prior to commencement of CIRP w.ef. 024 May, 2024, the Audit Committee had been
constituted by the Board of Directors The composition and terms of reference of the Audit
Committee has been furnished in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual
Report.

33. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Prior to commencement of CIRP w.e.f. 02~ May, 2024, the Committee had been constituted by
the Board of Directors The composition and terms of reference of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee has been furnished in the Corporate Governance Report forming part
of this Annual Report.

34. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Prior to commencement of CIRP w.e.f. 02°¢ May, 2024, the Committee had been constituted by
the Board of Directors The composition and terms of reference of Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee has been furnished in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual
Report.
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35. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR)
In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has framed its Corporate

Social Responsibility (CSR) policy for the development of programmes and projects for the benefit
of weaker Sections of the society and the same has been approved by the CSR Committee and the
Board of Directors of the Company. The Company has not spent any amount in CSR activities
since the Company has incurred losses during the last 3 years eroding the entire net worth.

36. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY
In terms of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, rules framed thereunder and Regulation 22 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has a

vigil mechanism in place for the Directors and Employees of the Company through which
genuine concerns regarding various issues relating to inappropriate functioning of the
organisation can be communicated. For this purpose, the company has a Vigil Mechanism Policy
and the same need to uploaded on the website of the Company i.e. www.impexferrotech.com.

37. PERFORMANCE/BOARD EVALUATION

In pursuance to section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating the performance of the Board of Directors

as well as that of its Committees and individual Directors, including Chairman of the Board, Key
Managerial Personnel/ Senior Management etc. For the year under review, No documents
pertaining to the performance evaluation was found.

38. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and

adhere to the Corporate Governance requirements set out in Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule
V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Report
on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the above Regulation forms an integral part of this
Annual Report.

39. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation
34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, is presented in a separate Section forming part of this Annual Report.

40. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

As required by Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the CEO/CFO certification has not been submitted
to the Board which forms an integral part of this Annual Report. The company Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) has resigned w.e.f 11/04/2024.

41. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the financial year under review, RP cannot confirm the extent of the Company
compliance with applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India (ICSI).

42. GREEN INITTATIVES IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has permitted Companies to send electronic copies of Annual
Report, notices etc., to the e-mail IDs of shareholders. The Company has accordingly arranged to
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send the soft copies of these documents to the e-mail IDs of shareholders wherever applicable.
The Company has made arrangement with CDSL/NSDL/RTA for updating the email address of
the concerned shareholders for supply of Annual Report in electronic means due to non-printing
of Annual Report physically. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the members who have not
registered their email addresses are requested to register the same with the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent/Depositories.

43. OTHER DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
e The disclosures and reporting with respect to issue of equity shares with differential rights as
to dividend, voting or otherwise is not applicable as the Company has not issued any such

shares during the reporting period.

e The disclosures and reporting on issue of shares (including sweat equity shares and issue of
shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme) to employees of the Company under any
scheme are not applicable as the Company has not issued any such shares during the
reporting period.

e There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

44. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Resolution Professional wish to acknowledge the co-operation and support extended to him by

assistance of former employees, employees of other group entities of the Company, and certain
external consultants who were previously associated with the Company.

ANNEXURE FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS REPORT
The Annexures referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be

disclosed are annexed herewith and forms part of the Directors Report:

Annexure Particulars
I Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR 3)
I Secretarial Compliance Report
I Particulars of Employees
v Prescribed particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
\"% Particulars of Contract or Arrangements with Related Parties (Form AOC 2)

For Impex Ferro Tech Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Sarawagi

Resolution Professional of M/s Impex Ferro Tech Limited

IBBI Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00171/2017-18/10340
Authorization for Assignment (“AFA”): AA1/10340/02/300625/107208
AFA Validity: June 30, 2025

Place: Kolkata
Date: 14 May, 2025
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Annexure -1

FORM NO. MR 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members
IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED
35, C.R. AVENUE, 4TH FLOOR,
KOLKATA - 700012

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
adherence to good corporate practices by IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED (hereinafter called the
Company) on the basis of the limited information, that could be made available by the Resolution
Professional. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company, and to the extent made available to us for verification, and
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31t March, 2024 complied with statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and Compliance —
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

The Resolution Professional having control over the management on commencement of CIRP could not
made available the signed copies of the minutes of the meeting of the Board, Committee or Members
meeting for verification, thus, we are unable to comment on the activities carried out in those meeting(s)
and requirement of compliance(s) thereon.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed and other records
maintained by Impex Ferro Tech Limited as was to the extent made available to us for verification for
the financial year ended on 31st March 2024 according to the applicable provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under, as applicable;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under (Not
applicable to the company during the audit period);

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the

(v)

extent of Overseas Direct Investment (Foreign Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings were not applicable to the company during the Audit period);

The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz.:-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 - (Not Applicable to the company);

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities),
Regulations, 2021 - (Not Applicable to the company);

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 -
(Not Applicable to the company);

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 - (Not
Applicable to the company);

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

(vi) Other than the fiscal, labour and environmental laws which are generally applicable to all

manufacturing/trading companies, there is no such law that applies specifically to the
company.

As informed by the Resolution Professional, the manufacturing operation of the plant has been shut
down since October 2022 and the renewal license required under the various act has not been
done during the year under review.

The examination and reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether there are
adequate systems and processes in place to monitor and ensure compliance with those laws.

We further report that we have not commented on the compliance of various tax laws and
accounting standards and compliance of Schedule Ill in the preparation of Financial Statements
as it is dealt separately by an appropriate independent professional and forms part of the
Annual report.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and
as amended;
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(ii) The Uniform Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (BSE) and
National Stock Exchange Limited (NSE)

As the minutes and other related documents were not made available for verification, we are unable
to comment on the extent of compliance w.r.t. Secretarial Standards issued by the ICSI.

During the audit period, we have observed the following discrepancies/defaults:

Non-Compliance observed under Companies Act, 2013

%

Form MGT 14 reporting certain transactions carried out in the meetings of the Board has not
been filed under section 179(3) read with section 117 w.r.t the resolution(s)/agreement(s)
approved thereof.

In Form DPT 3 filed with MICA, the data filled seems to be incorrect.

The company has an Advance from Customers in the books unappropriated within a period of
365 days from the date of acceptance of such advance, thereby violating the provisions of
section 73 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

The website of the company is not updated.

The company is in default of filing statutory forms with MCA pertaining to dues of MSME.

MGT 14 w.r.t. all the resolutions passed in the Annual General Meeting is not filed. It was
required to file all the resolutions passed in AGM with MCA as the meeting was held to
VC/OAVM.

Statutory Register required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 2013 are not updated.
There has been delay in filing observed in some forms filed with MCA.

The Annual Report posted on the website for the FY 2022-23 is incomplete as it doesn’t have
attached the Annexure to the Secretarial Compliance Report.

Non-Compliance observed under SEBI Regulations:

Regulation 47 — for quarter ended September 2023. The financial result was published beyond
48 hours as required under regulation 47.

Regulation 40(9) — Compliance Certificate as submitted with BSE for the financial year ended
31.03.2024 has been wrongly mentioned as 31.12.2024. This could be typographical error.
Regulation 23(9) — The company has disclosed the related party transactions to the Exchange
(i.e., BSE and NSE) on 14.11.2023, while the date of publication of its financial result was on
16.11.2023.

No document found w.r.t. compliance of Regulation 44(3) w.r.t. submission of voting Results to
Stack Exchange(s).

No documents found w.r.t. intimation of a Board meeting where decision of Shutdown of Plant
and Capital Expenditure has been approved, nor the outcome of such meeting.

Regulation 30(6): No intimation w.r.t. appointment of Additional Director/Director was made to
the exchange(s).

The company has received queries from NSE w.r.t. number of directors being less than 6 and the
composition of the Board of Directors not in line with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The
company has subsequently complied with the same.
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8. Regulation 46 — The website of the company was not updated as required under the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015. Many important documents are found not to be uploaded in the website viz.,
Scrutinizers’ Report for the AGM held for the year 2023, Quarterly Results, Quarterly
Shareholding Pattern and other quarterly compliances for the quarter ended 31 March, 2024
onwards, Copy of Memorandum of Association, Details of familiarisation programmes imparted
to independent directors etc.

9. Regulation 74(5) of the SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 — The company
was required to submit the certificate stated in this requlation within 15 days of end of each
quarter. The delay has been observed in the in almost every quarter during 2023-24.

10. We have not received the information from the company regarding the Continual Disclosures
and Disclosure of Encumbered Shares has been received from the promoters/other persons or
not, as required under regulation 30 and 31 of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (as amended). So we are unable to give opinion whether the
company has complied with the respective regulation or not.

11. No documents with regards to Compliance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 (as amended) was made available for verification, thus no comments on its compliance is
offered.

12. A fine has been imposed by the BSE for non-compliance of requlation 23(9) for the quarter ended
Sep’ 23 for a sum of Rs. 10,000 and non-compliance of reqgulation 33 for the quarter ended Sep’
22 and Dec’ 22 for a sum of Rs. 680,000 and Rs. 220,000 respectively plus GST, as per the claim
filed by BSE.

13. A fine has been imposed by the NSE for non-compliance of regulation 23(9) for the quarter ended
Sep’ 23 for a sum of Rs. 10,000 and non-compliance of regulation 33 for the quarter ended Sep’
22 for a sum of Rs. 680,000 plus GST, as per the claim filed by NSE.

14. We are unable to comment upon the compliance required to be made within stipulated time
after the conclusion of the Board meeting, due to unavailability of minutes.

15. We are unable to comment upon whether any prior intimation and/or outcome of the Board
Meeting was required to be given for any agenda item under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
due to unavailability of the notice for such meeting and minutes thereof.

We further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act. Following changes took place during the year:

a. Mr. Ritesh Chandak was appointed as an additional director w.e.f 21.07.2023 and was duly
regularized in the Annual General Meeting held on 28.09.2023.

Due to absence of the required documents for verification, we are unable to comment whether
adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and meaningful participation at
the meeting.
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We are further unable to comment whether majority decision is carried through while the dissenting
members’ views are captured and recorded, wherever required, as part of the minutes.

We further report that as per the explanation given to us and the representations made by the
Management, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations, and guidelines. A compliance report by the Company Secretary (CS) is submitted to the
Board periodically.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has following specific event/action having
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
standards and guidelines:

The accumulated losses of the Company have eroded the entire net worth of the Company
indicating the uncertainty about the Company’s ability to continue on a going concern basis.

The company during the financial year revamped Captive Power Plant (CPP) and Ferro Alloys
Plant as per the approval and direction of the Board, and accordingly a capital expenditure of Rs.
2358.77 lakhs have been incurred during the FY 2023-24 Capex.

We further report that:

1.

6.

Place
Date

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Plan (CIRP) has been initiated against the company M/s Impex
Ferro Tech Limited w.e.f. 02.05.2024 and Mr. Ashok Kumar Sarawagi is appointed as a
Resolution Professional(“RP”) vide Hon’ble NCLT order dated 12" July, 2024.

The Company Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer has resigned w.e.f. 11.04.2024. Thus, the
company is non-compliant of section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The company is non-compliant of SEBI Regulations.
The company is in default of filing statutory forms with MCA.
Listing fees for the financial year 2024-25 is due to be paid to BSE and NSE.

Custodian fees for the financial year 2024-25 is due to be paid to CDSL and NSDL.

: Kolkata For A ) & ASSOCIATES
:18.02.2025 Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Abhijeet Jain

Proprietor

FCS : 4975

C.P. No.: 3426

PR No.: 2742/2022

UDIN: FO04975F003959741
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Disclaimer: The Secretarial Audit has been conducted solely based on the limited data, information, and
documents provided to us by the Resolution Professional/Company. Due to such constraints, we are
unable to independently verify the completeness or accuracy of the records made available. Accordingly,
we do not express any opinion or provide assurance on whether all applicable annual/event-based
compliances under various laws, rules, and regulations have been duly complied with by the Company.
Our observations and reporting are strictly limited to the extent of the information furnished to us.

ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To
The Members,
Impex Ferro Tech Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. It is the management’s responsibility to identify corporate and other laws, rules, regulations,
standards, guidelines and directions which are applicable to the Company depending upon the
industry in which it operates and to comply and maintain those records in letter and in spirit.
Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 18.02.2025
For A J & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Abhijeet Jain

Proprietor

FCS: 4975

C.P. No.: 3426

PR No.: 2742/2022

UDIN: FO04975F003959741

Annual Report 2023-24 | 29



Annexure to the Directors’ Report

Annexure - 11

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

of
Impex Ferro Tech Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024

To

Impex Ferro Tech Limited
35, Chittaranjan Avenue,
Kolkata - 700012

We have examined:

a) all the documents and records to the extent made available to us for verification and
explanation provided by the Resolution Professional of Impex Ferro Tech Ltd., as the
company doesn’t have the compliance officer;

b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,

c) website of the listed entity,

d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this
certification,

for the year ended March 31, 2024 in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations,
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and
b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI”);
The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder,
have been examined, include:-
a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;
c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,
d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period);
e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the listed entity during the Review Period);
f) SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable

to the listed entity during the Review Period);
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g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations

2015;

h)

Other regulations as applicable;

and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder.

And based on the above examination, we hereby report that, during the Review Period:

(a)The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above regulations and
circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:

Sl.| Compliance | Regulati | Deviati Actio Type of | Details| Fin | Observati | Manage | Remar
INo. Requirement | on/Circu | ons n Action of e ons/remar| ment ks
(Regulations | lar No. Take| (Advisor | Violati| Am | ks of the| Respons

/Circulars/g n by | y/Clarifi | on oun | Practicing| e
uidelines cation/Fi t Company
including ne/Show Secretary
specific Cause
clause) Notice/W

arning

etc.)

Refer Annexure I
(b)The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in
previous reports:

Sl.| Compliance | Regulati | Deviati Actio Type of | Details| Fin | Observati | Manage | Remar
INo.| Requirement | on/Circu | ons n Action of e ons/remar| ment ks
(Regulations | lar No. Take| (Advisor | Violati | Am | ks of thel Respons

/Circulars/g n by | y/Clarifi | on oun | Practicing| e

uidelines cation/Fi t Company
including ne/Show Secretary
specific Cause
clause) Notice/W

arning

etc.)

Refer Annexure II.

Additional affirmations by Practicing Company Secretaries (PCS) in Annual Secretarial
Compliance Report (ASCR):

Sr. | Particulars Compliance | Observations/ Remarks by
No. Status PCS*
(Yes/No/NA)

1. | Secretarial Standards: No We are unable to offer any
The compliances of the listed entity comment since we have not been
are in accordance with the provided the copy of the notice
applicable Secretarial Standards and the minutes of the Boarc,l,
(SS) issued by the Institute of Committee and Shareholder’s

Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)

as notified by the Central

meeting for verification.
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Government under section 118(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and
mandatorily applicable.

Adoption and timely updation of No Policy in relation to the following

the Policies: heads have not been

* All applicable policies under SEBI updated/disseminated:

Regulations are adopted with the 1. Vigil Mechanism/

approval of board of directors of the Whistleblower Policy

listed entities 2. Policy on determining material

e All the policies are in conformity subsidiary

with SEBI Regulations and have

been reviewed and updated on time,

as per the regulations/ circulars/

guidelines issued by SEBI

Maintenance and disclosures on No Certain documents have not

Website: been maintained and disclosed

* The listed entity is maintaining a on the Website. Timely

functional website dissemination of information has

e Timely dissemination of the also not been posted on the

documents/ information under a website. Many important

separate section on the website documents are found not to be

* Web-links provided in annual uploaded in the website viz.,

corporate governance reports under Scrutinizers’ Report for AGM of

Regulation 27(2) are accurate and 2023, Quarterly Results,

specific which redirects to the Quarterly Shareholding Pattern

relevant document(s)/ section of the etc. for the quarter ended 31st

website. March, 2024 onwards, Copy of
Memorandum of Association,
Details of familiarisation
programmes imparted to
independent directors etc.
Further, some web links
provided in the annual Corporate
Governance for the year 2023 are
inaccurate.

Disqualification of Director:

None of the Director(s) of the Yes None of the directors are

Company is/are disqualified under disqualified by MCA to be

Section 164 of the Companies Act, appointed as directors as

2013. confirmed per the MCA Portal.
However, the status of the DIN of
three directors are
DEACTIVATED as per the MCA
Portal.

Details related to Subsidiaries of The Company does not have any

listed entities have been Subsidiary or Material

examined w.r.t No Subsidiary.

a) Identification of  material

subsidiary companies No

b) Requirement with respect to
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disclosure of material as well as
other subsidiaries.

6. | Preservation of Documents: NA The company do have the
The listed entity is preserving and archival policy in place. However,
maintaining records as prescribed since the Resolution Professional
under SEBI Regulations and could not retrieve and provide
dis 1 of d Poli £ the documents for verification,

posal of records as per Policy o
) we are unable to comment on
Preservation of Documents and whether the entity has been
Archival policy prescribed under following the Archival Policy as
SEBI LODR Regulation, 2015 prescribed under the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations.

7. | Performance Evaluation: No No documents pertaining to the
The listed entity has conducted performance evaluation was
performance evaluation of the made available for verification,
Board, Independent Directors and thus we are unable to give our

. comment on the same. Further,
the Committees at the start of every .

i i . with effect from the 02»d of May,
financial year/during the financial 2024, the CIRP has commenced
year as prescribed in  SEBI and the powers of the Board is
Regulations suspended.

8. | Related Party Transactions:

a) The listed entity has obtained Yes As per the financial statement
prior approval of Audit Committee and resolutions' and othgr
for all related party transactions; or documents filed with the MCA, it
b) In case of no prior approval is stated that th.e transactions
i i ) NA with related parties are at the
obtained, tI'le listed entity shgll arms’ length basis. The company
provide detailed reasons along with has also obtained necessary
confirmation whether the approval of the members in the
transactions were subsequently general meeting.
approved /ratified /rejected by the
Audit Committee

9. | Disclosure of events or In the absence of adequate
information: No information and documents, we
The listed entity has provided all the are unable to offer our comments
required disclosure(s) under on whether any material event
Regulation 30 along with Schedule occurred which is required to be
III of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 disclosed within time limits.
within the time limits prescribed However, we haven’t found any
thereunder. such intimation/disclosure made

to the exchange(s) during the
period under review as
prescribed under the SEBI LODR
Regulations. We have noticed
that there was an appointment of
an additional director which was
not disclosed to the exchange(s).

10. | Prohibition of Insider Trading: NA No documents with regards to

The listed entity is in compliance
with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI

Compliance of SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations,
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(Prohibition of Insider

Regulations, 2015

Trading)

2015 (as amended) was made
available for verification, thus no
comments on its compliance is

offered.
11. | Actions taken by SEBI or Stock
Exchange(s), if any:
No action(s) has been taken against No Fine imposed by NSE and BSE
the listed entity its promoters/ Ltd. for delayed compliance of
directors/ subsidiaries either by some regulations of SEBI (LODR)
SEBI or by Stock Exchanges Regulations, 2015. Refer
. . Annexure I.
(including wunder the Standard
Operating Procedures issued by
SEBI through various circulars)
under SEBI Regulations and
circulars /guidelines issued
thereunder.
12. | Additional Non-compliances, if
any: No Details of non-compliance is
No additional non-compliance given in Annexure I.

observed for any SEBI regulation/
circular/ guidance note, etc. except
as stated herein below:

Compliances related to resignation of statutory auditors from listed entities and their
material subsidiaries as per SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18th October,
2019:

Sr.
No.

Particulars

Observations/
Remarks by PCS*

Compliance
Status
(Yes/No/NA)

1.

Compliances with the following conditions
while appointing/re-appointing an auditor

(i) If the auditor has resigned within 45
days from the end of a quarter of a
financial year, the auditor before such
resignation has issued the limited review/
audit report for such quarter.

ii) If the auditor has resigned after 45 days
from the end of a quarter of a financial
year, the auditor before such resignation,
has issued the limited review/ audit report
for such quarter as well as the next
quarter; or

iii) If the auditor has signed the limited
review/ audit report for the first three
quarters of a financial year, the auditor
before such resignation, has issued the
limited review/ audit report for the last
quarter of such financial year as well as

No resignation of
auditors been made
during the year

NA under review.

NA

NA
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the audit report for such Financial Year

2. | Other conditions relating to resignation of
statutory auditor

(i) Reporting of concerns by Auditor with | NA NA
respect to the listed entity/its material
subsidiary to the Audit Committee:

(@) In case of any concern with the | NA NA
management of "the listed entity/material
subsidiary such as non-availability of
information / mnon-cooperation by the
management which has hampered the
audit process, the auditor has approached
the Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the listed entity and the Audit Committee
shall receive such concern directly and
immediately without specifically waiting for
the quarterly Audit Committee meetings.

(b) In case the auditor proposes to resign, | NA NA
all concerns with respect to the proposed
resignation, along with relevant documents
has been brought to the notice of the Audit
Committee. In cases where the proposed
resignation is due to non-receipt of
information / explanation from the
company, the auditor has informed the
Audit Committee the details of
information/ explanation sought and not
provided by the management, as
applicable.

(c) The Audit Committee /Board of | NA NA
Directors, as the case may be, deliberated
on the matter on receipt of such
information from the auditor relating to the
proposal to resign as mentioned above and
communicate its views to the management
and the auditor.

(ii) Disclaimer in case of non-receipt of
information:

The auditor has provided an appropriate | NA NA
disclaimer in its audit report, which is in
accordance with the Standards of Auditing
as specified by ICAI/NFRA, in case where
the listed entity/its material subsidiary has
not provided information as required by
the auditor

3. | The listed entity/ its material subsidiary
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has obtained information from the Auditor | NA NA
upon resignation, in the format as specified
in Annexure-A in SEBI Circular CIR/
CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18th
October,2019.

Assumptions & limitation of scope and review:

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and
information furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity.

2. Our responsibility is to report based upon our examination of relevant documents and
information. This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
books of account of the listed entity.

4. This report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation
24A (2) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the listed entity.

S. This report is limited to the statutory compliances on laws/regulations/guidelines
listed in our report which have been complied with by the company upto the date of
this report pertaining to the financial year ended 31.03.2024.

6. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of the procedures on random test basis.

7. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on a random test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Disclaimer: The Secretarial Audit has been conducted solely based on the limited data,
information, and documents as provided to us by the Resolution Professional/Company. Due
to such constraints, we are unable to independently verify the completeness or accuracy of the
records made available. Accordingly, we do not express any opinion or provide assurance on
whether all other applicable annual/event-based compliances under various rules, and
regulations have been duly complied with by the Company. Our observations and reporting
are strictly limited to the extent of the information furnished to us.

Place: Kolkata For A J & ASSOCIATES
Date : 18th February, 2025 Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Abhijeet Jain
Proprietor

FCS-4975

CP-3426

PR No. 2742/2022

UDIN: FO04975F003959805
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Annexure — I of Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

(@)The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above regulations and circulars/guidelines issued
thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:

Compliance Regulati | Deviations Action | Type of Details of | Fine Observation | Management | Remarks
Requirement on/Circ Taken | Action Violation Amount |s/ remarks | Response
(Regulations/Circ | ular No. by (Advisory of the
ulars/guidelines / Practicing
including specific Clarificat Company
clause) ion/ Secretary
Fine/
Show
Cause
Notice/
Warning
etc.
Disclosures of | Regulati | Disclosure NSE | Fine Disclosure Rs.
related party | on 23(9) | provided on | and imposed | provided on | 10,000/
transactions on | of SEBI | the date of | BSE the date of| - each.
the date of | (LODR), | approval of approval of the
publication of its | Regulati | the Financial Financial
standalone and | ons, Results Results
consolidated 2015. instead of the instead of the
financial results. date of date of
publication of publication of
the financial the financial
results. results.
Publication of | Regulati | Delay in | NA NA Delay in
advertisement in | on 47 of | Publication Publication
the newspaper, | SEBI beyond 48 beyond 48
within forty eight | (LODR), | hours for hours for
hours of | Regulati | Financial Financial
conclusion of the | ons, Results of Results of
meeting of board | 2015. quarter quarter ended
of directors at ended September,
which the September, 2023.
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financial results 2023.
were approved
Compliance Regulati | Compliance NA NA Compliance
Certificate by | on 40(9) | Certificate as Certificate as
practicing of SEBI | submitted submitted
Company (LODR), | with BSE for with BSE for
Secretary within | Regulati | the financial the financial
30 days from end | ons, year ended year ended
of Financial Year | 2015. 31.03.2024 31.03.2024
has been has been
wrongly wrongly
mentioned as mentioned as
31.12.2024 31.12.2024
Submission of | Regulati | No document | NA NA No document
voting Results to | on 44(3) | received received w.r.t.
Stack of SEBI | w.r.t. compliance of
Exchange(s) (LODR), | compliance of Regulation
Regulati | Regulation 44(3)
ons, 44(3).
2015.
Disclosure of | Regulati | No NA NA No documents
material events on 30 of | documents received w.r.t.
SEBI received intimation of a
(LODR), | w.r.t. Board meeting
Regulati | intimation of where decision
ons, a Board of Shutdown
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2015. meeting of Plant and
where Capital
decision of Expenditure
Shutdown of has been
Plant and approved, nor
Capital the outcome of
Expenditure such meeting.
has been
approved,
nor the
outcome  of
such
meeting.

Changes in | Regulati | No intimation | NA NA No intimation
Directors/ KMPs |on 30 | w.r.t. w.r.t.

(6) of | appointment appointment

SEBI of Additional of Additional

(LODR), | Director/Dire Director/Direc

Regulati | ctor was tor was made

ons, made to the to the

2015. exchange(s). exchange(s).

Disclosures to be | Regulati | The website | NA NA The website of
made on the |on 46 of | of the the company
website of the | SEBI company is is not updated
Company (LODR), | not wupdated as required

Regulati | as required under the

ons, under the SEBI (LODR)

2015. SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
Regulations, 2015. Many
2015. Many important
important documents viz.
documents Scrutinizer’s
viz. Report for the
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Scrutinizer’s AGM held for
Report for the year 2023,
the AGM held Quarterly

for the year results,

2023, Shareholding
Quarterly Pattern and
results, other
Shareholding Quarterly
Pattern and Compliances
other for the quarter
Quarterly ended 31st
Compliances March, 2024
for the onwards, Copy
quarter of

ended 31st Memorandum
March, 2024 of Association,
onwards, Details of
Copy of Familiarization
Memorandu Programmes
m of imparted to
Association, independent
Details of directors etc
Familiarizatio are found not
n to be
Programmes uploaded /upd
imparted to ated on the
independent website.
directors etc

are found not

to be

uploaded /up

dated on the

website.
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Annual
Secretarial
Compliance

Report and

Annual Report.

Regulati
on 24A
and 34
of SEBI
(LODR)
Regulati
ons,

2015

No
acknowledge
ment with
respect to
submission
of Annual
Secretarial
Compliance
Report for
the year
ended March,
2023 to the
Stock
Exchange(s)
was provided
by the
Company for
verification.

Further,
incomplete
set of Annual
Secretarial
Compliance
Report was
annexed in
the Annual
Report
uploaded on
the website of
the
Company.

NA

NA

No
acknowledgem
ent with
respect to
submission of
Annual
Secretarial
Compliance
Report for the
year ended
March, 2023
to the Stock
Exchange(s)
was provided
by the
Company for
verification.

Further,
incomplete set
of Annual
Secretarial
Compliance
Report was
annexed in the
Annual Report
uploaded on
the website of
the Company.
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9. | The Company | Regulati | The delay | NA NA The delay has
was required to | on 74(5) | has been been observed
submit the | of the | observed in in the quarter
certificate stated | SEBI the quarter ended March,
in this regulation | (Deposit | ended March, June,
within 15 days of | ories June, September
end of each | and September and December,
quarter. Particip | and 2023.

ants) December,
Regulati | 2023.
ons,

2018

10. | Continual Regulati | No NA NA No information
Annual on 30 | information received from
Disclosures on | and 31 | received from the Company
encumbered of SEBI | the Company with respect to
shares (Substa | with respect same.

ntial to same.
Acquisit

ion of

Shares

and

Takeove

rs)

Regulati

ons,

2011
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11.

Maintenance of
Structured

Digital Database
(SDD)

Regulati
on 3(5)
& 3()
SEBI

(Prohibi
tion of
Insider
Trading)
Regulati
ons,

2015

Non-
Compliance
observed in
this regard.

NA

NA

Non-
Compliance
observed in
this regard.

Annexure- II of Annual Secretarial Compliance Report

(b)The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:

ﬁl Compliance Regulati | Deviations Action | Type off Details of | Fine Observations/ Management | Remarks
o. | Requirement on/Circ Taken | Action Violation Amount | remarks of the | Response
(Regulations/ ular No. by (Advisory Practicing
Circulars/guidelin / Company
es including Clarificat Secretary
specific clause) ion/
Fine/
Show
Cause
Notice/
Warning
etc.

Due to unavailability of the documents from the Company, we are unable to comment on this.
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Annexure - III
Particulars of Employees
Sl. No. . . Remuneration of Director/KMP for
Name of Director/ KMP & Designation Financial Year 2023-24
1. Mr. Subham Bhagat ' . 3,00,000
(Chairman cum Managing Director)
2. Mr. Sanjeet Kumar Gupta
17,10,2
(CFO) 0,200
3. Ms. Richa Lath 6.00,000
(Company Secretary)
Note:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Note:

No Director other than the Managing Director and Executive Director received any

remuneration during the financial year 2023-24.

In the financial year, there was no change in the median remuneration of employee as

compared with the previous year.

No lists of employees have been handed over to the RP. RP has received claim from only

two employees Mr Sanjeet Kumar Gupta & Ms Richa Lath.

The remuneration of Directors/Key Managerial Personnel put together is Rs.26.10 Lacs as

compared to Rs 25.38 lacs in the previous financial year.

Remuneration policy for the year under review of the company was not handed over to
the RP. Therefore, RP cannot comment whether remuneration of Directors/KMPs/Senior
Management Personnel for the financial year 2023-24 is in accordance with the

Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company for the year under review.
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Annexure - IV

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo required pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013.

A) Conservation of Energy
i. Steps taken for Conservation of Energy
The plant of the company is shutdown since October 2022.

ii. Steps taken for Utilising Alternate Source of Energy.
The plant of the company is shutdown since October 2022

iii. Capital investment on energy conservation equipment
The plant of the company is shutdown since October 2022.

B) Technology Absorption

i. Efforts made towards technology absorption
The plant of the company is shutdown since October 2022.

ii. Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
import substitution.

The plant of the company is shutdown since October 2022.

iii.In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year) — NIL

iv. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development

a) Capital NIL
b) Recurring NIL
c) Total NIL
d) Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover NIL

C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

i. Activities relating to export, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new
export markets for the products & services and export plans:

The plant of the company is shutdown since October 2022.

ii. Total Foreign Exchange used and earned: (" in Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Foreign Exchange earned - -

Foreign Exchange used - -
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1. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at Arm’s Length Basis

FORM AOC-2

Annexure -V

Name(s)
of the Nature of
Related Contracts/
Party and | Arrangement
Nature of s/
Relations | Transactions
hip

Duration
of the
Contracts
/
Arrange
ments/
Transacti
ons

Salient Terms . .
Justification for | Date(s)
of the ..
entering into of
Contracts or
such Contracts | Approv
Arrangements
. or al by
or Transactions
. . Arrangements the
including the .
. or Transactions | Board
value, if any

Amount
paid as
Advances,
if any

Date on which the
Special Resolution
was passed in
General Meeting as
required under First
Proviso to Section
188

NIL

2. Details of Material Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions at Arm’s Length Basis

Salient Terms of
f Duration of h
Name(s) of the Related Nature o uration of the the Contracts or Date(s) of .
Contracts/ Contracts/ Arrangements or Amount paid as
Party and Nature of . Approval by .
. . Arrangements/ Arrangements/ Transactions Advances, if any
Relationship . . . . the Board
Transactions Transactions including the
value, if any
NIL

For Impex Ferro Tech Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Sarawagi
Resolution Professional of M/s Impex Ferro Tech Limited

IBBI Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00171/2017-18/10340
Authorization for Assignment (“AFA”): AA1/10340/02/300625/107208
AFA Validity: June 30, 2025

Place: Kolkata

Date: 14 May, 2025
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Ferroalloys are one of the important inputs in the manufacture of alloys and special steel. They
are used as deoxidisers and alloy additives in the steel manufacturing process. They impart special
properties to steel. The alloys provide increased resistance to corrosion, improve hardness &
tensile strength at high temperature, impart wear and abrasion resistance and increases creep
strength etc. The growth of Ferroalloys Industry is, thus, linked with the development of the Iron
and Steel Industry, Foundry Industry and to some extent Electrode Industry.

The principal ferroalloys are chromium, manganese and silicon. The product series consists
mainly of ferromanganese, silicomanganese, ferrosilicon and ferrochrome. Ferroalloys Industry
spends 40 to 70% production cost on power consumption. Most of the ferroalloys units have been
set up in Andhra Pradesh, Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, Karnataka, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra,
Odisha and West Bengal because of availability of the raw material as well as uninterrupted
electricity supply.

Ferroalloys are classified into two main categories, viz, bulk ferroalloys and noble ferroalloys.
Bulk ferroalloy is majorly used in stainless steel & carbon steel. Most of the noble ferroalloys are
made from rare-earth minerals and are expensive to produce as compared to bulk ferroalloys.

Ferromanganese/Silicomanganese: Ferromanganese is produced as high carbon ferromanganese
with 72-82% Mn, 6-8% C and 1.5% Si; medium-carbon ferromanganese with 74-82% Mn, 1-3% C
and 1.5% Si; and low-carbon ferromanganese with 80-85% Mn, 0.1-0.7% C and 1- 2% Si.
Silicomanganese on the other hand is a combination of 60-70% Mn, 10-20% silica and about 20%
carbon. Manganese in the form of ferromanganese is added for hardening and desulphurisation of
steel. Silicomanganese, is an alloy that contains 60- 70% manganese, 16-28% silicon and 1.5 to
2.5% carbon. It is more preferred as an effective deoxidising agent than high-carbon
ferromanganese in the production of various types of steels. It is also used as feedstock to produce
refined alloys like medium and low-carbon ferromanganese. Around 4,750 to 5,250 kWh power is
consumed to produce one tonne of silicomanganese. Silicomanganese has emerged as a more
important alloy than ferromanganese.

Ferrrochrome/Charge-chrome: Ferrochrome when added to steel imparts hardness, strength and
augments its stainless characteristics. For every tonnes of stainless steel (depending on the grade),
there is 17-23% of chrome content is required. Hence, if the stainless-steel Industry grows, the
Ferrochrome Industry also grows. Carbon content classifies the ferrochrome alloy into high-
carbon (6-8%), medium-carbon (3-4%) and low-carbon (1.5-3%), although chromium content in
all the three grades is around 60-70%. Around 2.5 tonnes chrome ore with an estimated power
consumption of 4,500 kWh is required to produce one tonne of ferrochrome. Ferrochrome is
produced by electric carbothermic reduction of chromite.

Ferrosilicon: Ferrosilicon contains about 75-90% silicon and minor amounts of iron, carbon, etc.
It is produced by using quartzite, iron ore, coke and electrode paste. Around 1.75 to 2 tonnes
quartzite is required to produce one tonne of ferrosilicon. A very high consumption of power, i.e.,
9,000 to 10,000 kWh is required to produce one tonne of ferrosilicon. It is a powerful deoxidising
agent and its major applications are in electrical steel used for transformers and dynamos, alloy
steel for tools & automobile valves and in iron casting and mineral dressing. Ferrosilicon is used
by the military to quickly produce hydrogen for balloons. For this, chemical reaction of sodium
hydroxide, ferrosilicon and water is utilised.

NOBLE FERROALLOYS : Noble ferroalloys are one of the vital additive inputs required
especially in production of alloy and special steel. Noble ferroalloys also refer to alloys used in
small quantities and are relatively expensive compared to bulk ferroalloys. These are used in the
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production of steel as deoxidant and alloying agents. These high temperature alloys impart
strength, resistance and stability within a temperature range from 260 to 1,200° C. These alloys
are used generally in turbine engines, power plants, furnaces and all pollution control equipment.
Noble ferroalloys include ferrovanadium, ferrotitanium, ferronickel, ferromolybdenum,
ferrotungsten and ferroniobium. In India, noble ferro alloys are mostly manufactured through
alumino-thermic process.

ENVIRONMENT FACTORS: Studies reveal that depending on the ferroalloy manufactured, waste
generation per day in 35 tpd and 50 tpd ferrosilicon and ferrochrome plants may be in the
following range: Silica fines: 7 to 8 tonnes/day Fe-Cr slag (fined boulder): 40 tonnes/day Charcoal
& coke fines: 7 to 8 tonnes/day Waste from ferroalloys industries could be effectively utilised, a
typical Fe-Si or Fe-Cr manufacturing unit can provide material for 10 small scale units for
manufacturing bricks and each unit can produce 2,400 bricks per day. Other units which can be
set up are board-and-briquette-making units. The utilisation of waste materials for converting
them into building materials will result in bringing down the building material cost, and
therefore, lead to conservation of natural resources like clay and sand

WORLD REVIEW The major ferroalloys producing countries were China, South Africa, India,
Russia and Kazakhstan. The markets for the bulk alloys like high-carb on ferromanganese,
silicomanganese, ferrosilicon and high-carbon ferrochrome showed varied responses to the
fluctuations in steel and stainless steel production which seem to have influence as per the
different circumstances that prevailed in different markets.

FUTURE OUTLOOK Depending on the process of steel making and the type of steel being
manufactured, the requirement of different ferroalloys varies widely. Indian Ferroalloys Industry
has immense potential and capability to compete in the international market. On the positive
side, India produces some of the finest ferroalloys in the world. Indian ferroalloys are extensively
preferred in Europe. India exports potential is indeed bright with very high growth prospects. As
per the National Steel Policy, 2017, Ferroalloy industry is a power intensive industry. Hence,
captive power generation in the ferroalloys plants will be extensively supportive. Since the
demand for ferro-alloys is likely to grow along with steel production in the country, the Industry
would have to be encouraged to set up larger units to achieve adequate economies of scale. Efforts
in the direction of providing necessary raw materials linkages and stable supply of power to the
Ferroalloy units must be rendered priority

FERRO ALLOYS INDUSTRY

Ferro alloys are critical additives in the production of Iron & Steel and the fortune of Ferro Alloys
Industry is directly linked with the growth of Iron & Steel Industry. The Company produces
Ferro alloys.

INDIAN FERRO INDUSTRY

The Indian ferro alloys production has been gradually on increasing track in the year 2023-24 as
compared to the year 2022-23. The Country’s export of annual ferro alloys is also showing a
gradual increase. The socio—political relations with neighbouring countries is also expected to play
an important part in the future for ferro alloys industry.

The industry is expected to see substantial consolidations which will drive market discipline and

cut down inefficiencies in the production capacity. India holds a lot of promise with government
initiatives easing mining operations for consolidated Ferro Alloys producers.
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OUTLOOK

The steel sector has been a major contributor to India's manufacturing output which in turn
depends on increase in automotive production and the development of construction sector.

The proportion of use of ferro alloys depends upon the grade of stainless steel being produced
which can be upto 30% of the total input of production. The demand for ferro alloys is expected
to increase gradually in future. Rising investment in the infrastructure and real estate sectors and
increase in number of construction activities are promising a slow but gradually demand for
stainless steel products.

Impex Ferro is the one of the manufactures of ferro alloy in eastern India. The Company
currently operates a manufacturing complex at Kalyaneshwari plant in West Bengal.

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Kolkata Bench, admitted the Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) application filed by a Financial Creditor of Impex Ferro
Tech Limited (the Company) and appointed Mr. Rajiv Kumar Agarwala as Interim Resolution
Professional (RP), in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (The code) vide order
dated 2nd May, 2024. Subsequently Mr. Ashok Kumar Sarawagi was appointed as Resolution
Professional (RP) by the Committee of Creditors (CoC) in its 2nd CoC meeting held on 14th June,
2024 as approved vide order dated 12th July, 2024 by the Hon’ble court of NCLT, Kolkata. In view
of pendency of CIRP, the management of the affairs of the company and power of the Board of
Directors are now vested with RP. The future of the company depends upon the outcome of
ongoing CIRP.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE

This has been dealt within the Board’s Report.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements made in the Report describing the Company’s objective and predictions may be
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual
results may vary significantly from the forward-looking statements contained in this document
due to various risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of outcome
of undergoing CIRP process, economic and political conditions in India, volatility in interest rates
new regulations and government policies that may impact the Company’s business as well as its
ability to implement the strategy. The Company doesn’t undertake to update the statements.

Annual Report 2023-24 | 49



Corporate Governance Report

Note: After the closure of the financial year 2023-24, The Hon'ble National Company law Tribunal,
Kolkata Bench has admitted the petition filed by operational creditor M/s Auroma Coke Limited
under Section 9 of the IBC. Through the said order dated 2nd May 2024 of the NCLT, Mr. Rajiv
Kumar Agarwal (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00552/2017-2018/10982) was appointed
as the Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) of the Corporate Debtor. Pursuant to the Insolvency
Commencement Order and in consonance with the stipulation contained in Section 17 of the Code,
the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended w.e.f. 02/05/2024.Further
pursuant to the application filed IA (Companies Act)/133(KB)2024), under section 22(3)(b) of the
code by the Committee of Creditor, Mr Ashok Kumar Sarawagi has been appointed as a Resolution
professional(RP) by order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”)
dated 12th July 2024.

Since all the powers of the existing Board of Directors have been suspended w.e.f. 02/05/2024,
instead of Board of Directors, Resolution Professional is presenting this Corporate Governance
Report to the extent information available with him.

Due to limited information available, RP cannot comment to the extent compliances were fulfilled
by the suspended Board of Directors during or for the FY 2023-24. It is pertinent to mention that
the Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP") namely Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of
the company, had resigned before the commencement of the CIRP, and the Managing Director
remains unapproachable. Due to this, access to several statutory records and registers has been
significantly limited. Further, the Company has had no business operations, and its plant has
remained non-operational since October 2022. The financial condition of the Company has
deteriorated significantly, making it difficult to maintain proper compliance under various laws.
However, Resolution Professional is trying to comply all mandatory and event-based compliances
to the extent information and records available.

Corporate Governance is the combination of voluntary practices and compliance with laws and regulations
leading to effective control and management of the Organisation. Good Corporate Governance leads to long
term Shareholder value and enhances interest of other Stakeholders.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has endeavored to benchmark itself against global standards in all areas, including Corporate
Governance. Good Corporate Governance implies optimum utilisation of the resources and ethical behaviour
of the enterprise to enhance the stakeholders’ value with strong emphasis on transparency, accountability
and integrity, which are the primary objectives of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

¢ Composition and Category
The Company is undergoing CIRP by the order dated 2nd May, 2024 of the Hon’ble National Company
law Tribunal , Kolkata Bench. Regulation 17 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 regarding the Board
of Directors shall not be applicable to the Company during the CIRP. As per Section 17 of the IBC, 2016,
the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as specified under Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations 2015 shall be fulfilled by the Resolution Professional.

During The FY 2023-24, The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors. The Board has strength of
Six (6) Directors as on 31st March, 2024. The Board comprises of optimum combination of Executive and
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Non-Executive Independent Directors out of which one (1) Director is Executive and four (4) were Non-
Executive Independent Directors including one (1) Woman Director. The Chairman of the Company is an
Executive Director. As reported in Secretarial Audit Report of FY 2023-24, the company has received
queries from NSE w.r.t. number of directors being less than 6 and the composition of the Board of
Directors not in line with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 which was subsequently complied by the
company. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Mr. Ritesh Chandak was
appointed as an additional director w.e.f 21.07.2023 and was duly regularized in the Annual General
Meeting held on 28.09.2023.
The Board of Directors comprises of following:

S.No. | Name of the Directors DIN Category

L. Mr. Subham Bhagat 09070773 | Executive (Chairman cum Managing Director)
2. Mr. Ritesh Chandak 10238203 | Non-Executive Director

3. Mrs. Sujata Agarwal 06833458 | Non-Executive Independent Director

4. Mr. Sharat Malik 08529458 | Non-Executive Independent Director

5. Mr. Debasish Mukherjee 08529465 | Non-Executive Independent Director

6. Mr. Aritro Roy 08257216 | Non-Executive Independent Director

After the closure of the FY 2023-24, on 0274 May, 2024 as company went into CIRP under Insolvency &
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, the board of Directors has since been suspended. RP has not come across any
statement/declaration from directors regarding about their directorship in no. of companies and other
related matters like directorship/ committee positions occupied by them in other Listed Entities/Unlisted
Public Limited Companies in accordance with Regulations 25 and 26 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013.

After the closure of FY, the company went into CIRP under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, so
there is no point to comment about their directorship in no. of companies and other related matters.

After the closure of FY, director named Sujata Agarwal has resigned from post of Director wef 03/03/2025
citing personal reason.

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Six (6) Board Meetings were held during the year 2023-24 and the gap between two meetings did not exceed
One Hundred and Twenty (120) days. During FY 2023-24, the dates on which the Board Meetings were held
were 29.05.2023, 21.07.2023, 14.08.2023, 14.11.2023, 13.02.2024 and 06.03.2024.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As on 31st March, 2024, the Company has four (4) Independent Directors on its Board out of the total
strength of Six (6) Directors. All the Independent Directors of the Company need to furnish a declaration
at the time of their appointment and also annually that they qualify the tests of their being Independent
as laid down under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. All
requisite declarations were placed before the Board. After the closure of FY 2023-24, the company is
admitted under CIRP. RP has not received any declarations from any director that they meet the criteria
of Independence as prescribed under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges.
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Meeting of Independent Directors

Resolution professional does not have any record of Meeting of Independent Directors held during the FY
2023-24

Familarisation Program of Independent Directors

In terms of Regulation 25(7) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company should conduct the Familiarization Program
for Independent Directors about their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry
in which the company operates, business model of the company, and other relevant information etc.,
through various initiatives. The purpose is to provide insights into the Company to enable the
Independent Directors to understand the Company’s business in depth, their role & responsibilities that
would facilitate their active participation in managing the Company.

The details with respect to Familarisation Program was found uploaded upto FY 2022-23 and not updated
for FY 2023-24 on the Company’s website RP has not come across any records to conclude details of
familiarization programme imparted to independent directors during FY 2023-24.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As informed, during the FY 2023-24, there are four (4) Board Committees — Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC) and
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The terms of reference of the Committees are
determined by the Board from time to time. The terms of reference, role and composition of these
Committees, including the number of meetings held and attended by the members during the financial
year are informed below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee within the scope of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules framed thereunder read with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee meets at least Four (4) times in a year and not
more than one hundred and twenty days (120) have elapsed between two meetings.

As per the records available during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024, four (4) Audit Committee
Meetings were held on 29.05.2023, 14.08.2023, 14.11.2023 and 13.02.2024. However, Resolution
Professional did not find minutes of Committee meetings in the company’s record.

A. Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson with designation, Meetings and Attendance during
the year

As per document available, the Audit Committee comprises of three (3) Directors out of which 2 are
Independent Director.

The Composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by the Committee
members during the year are given below:

Name of the Member Designation Category No. of Meetings Attended
Mrs. Sujata Agarwal Chairman | Independent/Non-Executive 3
Mr. Subham Bhagat Member | Executive Director 3
Mr. Aritro Roy Member | Independent/ Non-Executive 3
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Internal Audit

M/s NR & Associates., Internal Auditors of the Company have carried out the Internal Audit for the
financial year 2023-24. The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee need to be conducted in compliance with the provisions
of section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder along with Regulation 19 read
with Part-D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. From the past reports, it came to record that the existing Nomination and Remuneration Committee
was reconstituted on 10th March, 2021. As per the records available during the financial year ended 31st
March, 2024, one (1) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held on 21.07.2023.

A. Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson, Meetings and Attendance during the year

As per documents available, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three (3)
Directors. All the members of the Committee are Independent/Non-Executive. Mr. Sharat Malik, Non-
Executive Independent Director is the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings
attended by the Committee members during the year are given below:

Name of the Member | Designation Category No. of Meeting Attended
Mr. Sharat Malik Chairman | Non-Executive/ Independent 1
Mrs. Sujata Agarwal | Member Non-Executive/ Independent 1
Mr. Aritro Roy Member Non- Executive/ Independent 1

B. Nomination and Remuneration Policy

As per the information available, the detailed Nomination and Remuneration Policy is uploaded on the
website of the Company i.e. www.impexferrotech.com.

C. Performance Evaluation

Performance evaluation of board needs to be in accordance with the provisions of section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder along with Schedule IV of the Act and
Regulation 17(10), 19(4) and Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The listed entity needs to be conducted performance evaluation of
the Board, Independent Directors and the Committees at the start of every financial year/during the
financial year. However, RP does not come across documents pertaining to the performance evaluation
conducted for the year under review. Thus, RP is unable to provide the extent of compliance or their
evaluation. Further, with effect from the 02nd of May, 2024, the CIRP has commenced and the powers
of the Board are suspended.

D. Remuneration of Directors
a. NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As informed, the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors consists of only sitting fees for
attending each meeting of the Board of Directors or a Committee thereof. As per information
available, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 28th April, 2022 has decided to waive off
the sitting fees to be paid to the members of the Board for the Board meeting and various
Committee meetings to be held during the year denoting the poor financial situation of the

Company where the net worth of the Company has fully eroded.
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Name of the Director Sitting Fee paid (") No. of Shares held as on
31st March, 2024

Mr. Sharat Malik - Nil

Mr. Aritro Roy - Nil

Mrs. Sujata Agarwal - Nil

Mr. Debasish Mukherjee - Nil

Mr. Ritesh Chandak - Nil

b. EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has paid remuneration only by way of salary to its Managing Director/Executive
Director and the same is within the limits specified under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013
and duly approved by the Board as well as by the Shareholders of the Company. Details of
remuneration paid during 2023-24 are as follows:

Name of the Director | Remuneration Period of Contract Notice | No. of Shares
and Designation paid () * Period held as on
From To 31st March,
2024
Mr. Subham Bhagat 3,00,000 is NA NA NA NIL
(Chairman cum | provided for
Managing Director) director
remuneration
in FY 2023-24
accounts

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In compliance with the provisions of section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 read
with Part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was constituted to specifically look into the redressal of
Investors’ complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet and non-receipt of declared

dividends, etc. As per the information available, the existing Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was
reconstituted on 10th March, 2021.

A. Terms of Reference

w

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as follows:

. To review and ensure compliance of statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the guidelines of

SEBI and the Stock Exchanges and other statutory requirements relating to transfer and transmission
of shares/debentures of the Company.

. To review and ensure that the Registrar/Company’s Transfer House implements all statutory provisions

as above.

Approve transfers/transmission of shares/debenture and demat/remat of the shares/debenture.

Approve issue of duplicate shares certificates/debenture certificates, issue of certificates on
consolidation/sub-division/rematerialisation.

To consider and resolve all shareholders queries, grievance and complaints like transfer of shares, non-
receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends etc. are attended and redressed in an
expeditious manner.

Monitor implementation of Company’s Code of Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting
Prohibition of Trading by Insider.

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.
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8.

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices
by the shareholders of the Company.

9. Any other matter referred by the Board relating to equity shareholders of the Company.

. Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson with designation, Meetings and Attendance

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of three (3) Directors, out of which two (2) are
Independent Directors and one (1) is Executive Director. The Chairman of the Committee is an
Independent Director. During the year under review, the Committee met once on 06.03.2024.

The composition of the Committee and the attendance of the members in the meeting during the year are
given hereunder:

Name of the Member Designation Category No. of Meeting
Attended
Mrs. Sujata Agarwal Chairman Non-Executive/ Independent 1
Mr. Subham Bhagat Member Chairman cum Managing Director 1
Mr. Debasish Mukherjee Member Non-Executive/ Independent 1

C. Name and Designation of Compliance Officer

As per the information available, Mrs. Richa Lath, Company Secretary has been designated as
Secretary to the Committee and act as Compliance Officer of the Company. The Committee has
delegated the authority to approve the requests for transfers/transmission, split and remat/demat of
shares to the Company Secretary. The Committee reviews the transfer/demat/remat approved by the
Company Secretary and take note thereof in their subsequent meeting. Company Secretary, Mrs Richa
Lath has resigned from the office with effect from 11% April, 2024.

. Code of Conduct for Trading by Insider

With a view to regulate in securities by the Directors and Designated Employees, the Company has
adopted a Code of Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insider and Code
of Practices and Procedure for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.

. Investor’s Grievances

In compliance with the requirements of the SEBI Circular No. CIR/0IAE/2/2011 date 3rd June, 2011,
the Company has registered itself in a centralized web based SEBI Complaints Redress System named
as ‘SCORES’ for processing investor complaints online and enabling the investors to view the status of
any action taken up by the Company on their specific complaints or the current status whereof, by
logging on to the SEBI’s website www.sebi.gov.in.

No shareholder’s complaint was received by the Company as on 31st March, 2024 under ‘SCORES’.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee has been constituted by the Board of Directors of
the Company as per the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) rules, 2014 as amended from time to time. As per the information provided, the CSR
Committee was re-constituted on 30th March, 2023.

A. Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson with designation, Meetings and Attendance

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee consists of three (3) Directors, out of which
two (2) are Independent Directors and one (1) is Executive Director. The Chairman of the
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Committee is an Independent Director. As per the information provided, The Company Secretary
acts as the Secretary to the Committee. During the year under review, the Committee has met once
on 06.03.2024. The composition of the Committee and the attendance of the members in the
meeting during the year are given hereunder:

Name of the Member Designation Category No. of Meeting
Attended
Mr. Sharat Malik Chairman Non-Executive/ Independent 1
Mr. Subham Bhagat Member Executive 1
Mr. Aritro Roy Member Non-Executive/ Independent 1

Due to the losses incurred by the Company during the year under review, the obligations of making
expenditure on account of CSR do not arise.

GENERAL BODY MEETING
A. Details of the location and time of the last three Annual General Meeting held
Date Financial Year Place Time
28th September, 2023 2022-23 ‘SKP HOUSE’, 132A, S. P Mukherjee Road, 3.00 P.M.
Kolkata — 700026 through Video
Conference/OAVM
29th September, 2022 2021-22 ‘SKP HOUSE’, 132A, S. P Mukherjee Road, 3.00 P.M.
Kolkata — 700026 through Video
Conference/OAVM
28th September, 2021 2020-21 ‘SKP HOUSE’, 132A, S. P Mukherjee Road, | 3.00 P.M.
Kolkata - 700026  through  Video
Conference/OAVM

B. Special Resolutions Passed at the last three Annual General Meetings

Financial Year Items
2022-23 e Re-appointment of Mr. Subham Bhagat (DIN:09070773), as Chairman
cum Managing Director
2021-22 e Appointment of Mr. Ranjeet Kumar Burnwal as Executive Director of
the Company.
2020-21 e Appointment of Mr. Subham Bhagat as Chairman cum Managing

Director of the Company.
e Re-appointment of Mr. Satish Kumar Singh as an Executive Director of

the Company.

e No Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) was held by the Company during the financial year
2023-24.

e One Special Resolution was passed during the financial year 2022-23 through Postal Ballot for Re-
appointment of Mr. Subham Bhagat as Chairman cum Managing Director of the Company for
further period of two (2) years under section 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed
thereunder.

e The Company does not propose to conduct any Special Resolution through postal ballot at the
ensuing AGM.
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
A. Financial Results

In compliance with the requirements of the Listing Agreements/SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, prior intimation of Board Meeting for consideration and
approval of Unaudited/Audited Financial Results of the Company is given to Stock Exchanges where
the Company is listed and the same is also uploaded on the website of the Company
www.impexferrotech.com. The Results after being approved at the Board Meeting are immediately
intimated to the Stock Exchanges. In terms of Regulation 10 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company files all the required reports and statements
online through the electronic filing platforms of BSE Limited (BSE) viz. BSE Corporate Listing Centre
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) viz. NSE Electronic Application Processing
System (NEAPS).

B. Newspapers

The aforesaid Financial Results are published in one English National daily and in a local (Bengali)
vernacular newspaper widely circulated in the state of West Bengal.

C. Website

The Company’s website www.impexferrotech.com contains a separate section ‘Investor’s Corner’
which contains details of all the necessary information’s for the stakeholders to enable them to update
their know-how about the Company as and when required. The shareholders/investors can also view
the details of the reports and statements uploaded through electronic filing platform by the Company
on the websites of BSE Limited i.e. www.bseindia.com and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
i.e. www.nseindia.com respectively. The Company has a dedicated e-mail id: cs@impexferrotech.com
for providing necessary information to the investors as well as for registering any
compliance/grievances.

D. Annual Report

The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statements, Boards’ Report, Auditors’
Report and other important information is circulated to members and others entitled thereto. The
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MDA) Report forms part of the Annual Report.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

A. Annual General Meeting
Day, Date & Time Tuesday, 10th June, 2025, 3.00 P.M.

Venue AGM through VC/OAVM facility at the Corporate office of the Company
Financial Year Ist April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024

Note: After the closure of the financial year 2023-24, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process
(“CIRP”) with respect to the Impex Ferro Tech Limited commenced under the provisions of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”) and IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate
Persons) Regulations, 2016 (“CIRP Regulations”) vide order dated 2nd May 2024 passed by the Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“NCLT”), The Annual Financial Results could not be
finalise on due time due to non-cooperation of personnel of the corporate debtor. The
account/information has not handed over by the personnel of the corporate debtor, its promoters or
any other person associated with the management of the corporate debtor within time to facilitate in
audit of accounts. Thus, after audit of Annual Financial result of FY 2023-24, petition for extension of
holding AGM was filed before NCLT, Kolkata. The same petition got approved vide NCLT order no:
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IA(COMPANIES.ACT)/237(KB)2024 dated 18th December, 2024. Thus, your company Resolution
Professional is convening the AGM accordingly.

B. Dividend Payment Date :N.A.
C. Listing of the Equity Shares on Stock Exchange
Name of the Stock Exchange Address Stock Code
BSE Ltd. (BSE) “Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Tower” Dalal Street, 530614
Mumbai-400 001
National Stock Exchange of | “Exchange Plaza” Bandra-Kurla Complex IMPEXFERRO

India Ltd. (NSE)

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051

The Company has not paid the listing fee for the year 2024-25 to both the Stock Exchanges where
the shares of the Company are listed.

D. Cut-off date: Tuesday, 03rd June, 2025

E. Market Price Data

The Stock Market data on BSE & NSE for the last twelve (12) months are provided herein i.e. From
April 2023 to March 2024 is as below:

Month National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (Rs.) | Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (Rs.)
HIGH LOW HIGH LOW
April, 2023 3.50 2.45 3.72 2.44
May, 2023 3.75 2.70 3.80 2.75
June, 2023 3.35 2.90 3.33 2.90
July, 2023 3.10 2.70 3.10 2.62
August, 2023 3.50 2.70 3.57 2.70
September, 2023 3.75 2.75 3.82 2.75
October, 2023 3.35 2.80 3.33 2.71
November, 2023 3.75 2.95 3.82 2.95
December, 2023 3.75 2.95 3.79 3.00
January, 2024 6.30 3.55 6.53 3.36
February, 2024 6.40 4.80 6.47 4.75
March, 2024 4.85 3.15 4.84 3.15
F. Performance of the Company share in BSE in comparison with BSE Sensex
Green line: Impex Ferro Tech Limited BSE, Red line: Sensex 30 index
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G. Performance of the Company share in NSE in comparison with NIFTY50 index
Green line: Impex Ferro Tech Limited BSE, Red line: Nifty50 30 index
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H. The International Security Identification Number (ISIN) for NSDL & CDSL: INE691G01015

I. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

The Company has availed the services of M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd, 23, R. N.
Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata — 700 001 for processing the transfers, transmission etc. and to
process the member’s request for dematerialization /rematerialisation of shares. Accordingly, all
communications on matters relating to Share Transfers, Dividend etc. may be sent directly to them.
In compliance with Regulation 7(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 we comply with half yearly with a certificate to both the Stock Exchanges duly
signed by the Company Secretary and Authorized Representative of the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent that activities relating to both physical and electronic share transfer facility are
maintained by the above-mentioned Share Transfer Agent who is registered under SEBI.

J. Share Transfer System

The share transfer/transmissions/splits and/or issue of duplicate share certificate requests are
processed on behalf of the Company by Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Maheshwari
Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. The transfer of shares process is usually addressed within fifteen days from the
date of receipt. The director or the Company officials, i.e. Chief Financial Officer or Company
Secretary duly authorized by the Board approves all the transfers made and are noted under
subsequent Board Meetings. In compliance with the provisions of Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Practicing Company
Secretary audits the Share Operation System of the Company maintained at the office of the RTA

and provides a certificate in compliance of the same to be uploaded on both the Stock Exchanges
NSE & BSE.

K. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024

Range No. of Shareholders % of Shareholders | No. of Shares | % of Total
Upto 500 14938 70.63 2154709 2.45
501 to 1000 2676 12.65 2354035 2.68
1001 to 2000 1552 7.34 2519268 2.87
2001 to 3000 558 2.64 1450212 1.65
3001 to 4000 258 1.22 939719 1.07
4001 to 5000 330 1.56 1592685 1.81
5001 to 10000 459 2.17 3521770 4.00
10001 and above 380 1.78 73399206 83.47
Total 21151 100.00 8,79,31,604 100.00
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L. Dematerialisation of shares and Liquidity

The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialised form which is available for trading
on both NSDL and CDSL However as per BSE data, 8,71,75,134 Equity shares representing 99.14%
of the share capital are held in dematerialised form viz., CDSL — 7,48,27,954 Equity Shares and
NSDL - 1,23,47,180 Equity Shares.

M. Outstanding ADR’s & GDR’s, Warrants or any other convertible instruments, conversion date and
likely impact on Equity Shares

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any ADR’s & GDR’s, Warrants or any
other convertible instruments. The Company has at present no outstanding ADR’s/GDR’s/Warrants
to be converted that has an impact on the Equity Shares of the Company.

N. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2024: As per BSE Ltd:

Category No. of Shares % of holding
Promoter & Promoter Group 6,07,64,846 69.10
Public: 2,71,66,758 30.90
Bodies Corporate 13,15,613 1.54
Individuals 2,40,78,916 27.39
Non-Resident Individuals 1,71,742 0.20
Clearing Member 5,39,706 0.61
Trusts 3200 Nominal
HUF 10,15,581 1.15
Total 8,79,31,604 100.00

O. Plant Locations

Kadavita Dendua Road

P.O. Kalyaneshwari, P.S. Kulti

Dist. — Burdwan, West Bengal — 713 369

Phone : +91-341-2522248/49, Fax : +91-341-2522961

P. Name, Designation & Address of Compliance Officer for Complaints & Correspondence

As per the records available, for the year under review, Mrs. Richa Lath, Company Secretary was
the Compliance Officer for the purpose of complying under various provisions of SEBI LODR and
Companies Act, 2013. However she has resigned w.e.f 11.04.2024. After the closure of the year,
Company went into CIRP and Resolution Professional was appointed by hon’ble NCLT to manage
the whole affairs of the company so at present Mr. Ashok Kumar Sarawagi has been appointed as
compliance officer for all the matters/compliances.

Address for Correspondence

Registered Office: Corporate Office:

Impex Ferro Tech Limited Impex Ferro Tech Limited

35, C. R. Avenue SKP House,

Kolkata — 700 012 132A, S. P. Mukherjee Road,

Phone: +91-33-22110225 Kolkata — 700 026

Email Id: cs@impexferrotech.com Phone: +91-33-4016 8000/8100,

CIN: L27101WB1995PLC071996 Fax: +91-33-4016 8191/8107
OTHER DOSCLOSURES

Annual Report 2023-24 | 60


mailto:cs@impexferrotech.com

Corporate Governance Report

a. Related Party Transactions: Transactions with related parties as per the requirements of
Accounting Standards 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are disclosed
in the relevant Schedule of Notes to Annual Accounts. A disclosure of related party relationship
and transactions as per AS-18 is given in the notes to the Financial Statement in the Annual
Accounts of the Company. The report of the Independent Statutory Auditors in their Audit
Report does not contain any adverse observations

b. Vigil Mechanism: In order to strengthen the process of conducting the business in a fair,
transparent and ethical manner, the Company has set up a Vigil Mechanism or Whistle Blower
Policy. The policy is intended to establish a mechanism for employees to report to the
management genuine concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation
of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics, for which a dedicated email id
cs@impexferrotech.comhas been established. The policy is available on the Company’s website
i.e. www.impexferrotech.com. However, the policy on website is not updated and RP has not
received any updated Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower policy.

c. Details of compliance of Mandatory requirement and adoption of Non-Mandatory requirement
of SEBI LODR: Due to limited information available, RP cannot comment to the extent
compliances were fulfilled by the suspended Board of Directors during or for the FY 2023-24.
However, Resolution Professional is trying to comply all mandatory and event-based
compliances to the extent information and records available

d. The Company does not have any Subsidiary.

e. Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: There are no commodity
price risks or commodity hedging activities involved.

f.Web link of Related Party Transactions Policy: The Related Party Transactions Policy is available
on the website of the Company.

g. As informed, Risk Management Policy has been formed by the Company on 30th May, 2015.
The risk assessment and minimisation procedures are in place and the Board is regularly
informed by the Senior Executives about the business risks, if any occurs, and the steps taken to
mitigate the same.

h. Management Discussion & Analysis Report: A Management Discussion and Analysis Report is
given separately, and forms part of Annual report.

i.Certificate from practicing Company Secretary: A certificate from M/s. A ] & ASSOCIATES,
Practicing Company Secretaries that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) or any
such statutory authority is forming part of Annual Report. However, it is reported that three
directors DIN is Deactivated as per MCA data base. The certificate is attached in this report.

j- Total fees for all services paid to the Statutory Auditors by the Company: Total fees paid by the
Company to the Statutory Auditor viz. M/s. ].B.S. & Company, Chartered Accountants, for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2024 is as follows:

Particulars Amount in Rs. (Lacs)
Audit Fees (including Tax Audit) 4.50
For Certification and other services 0.80
Total 5.30
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k. Accounting Treatment: As reported in Audit report by auditors, the Financial Statements of the
Company for financial year 2023-24 have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting principles in India and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder.

L. Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 is as follows: RP does not
come across any report to comment it:

Number of complaints filed during the financial year under review NA
Number of complaints disposed off during the financial year under review NA
Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year NA

DISCRETIONARY CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS

In terms of Regulation 27(1) of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule II of the said
Regulation, the disclosure on account of the extent to which the discretionary requirements as
specified in Part E of Schedule II are given below:

A. The Board: As stated earlier, after the close of FY, Pursuant to the Insolvency Commencement
Order and in consonance with the stipulation contained in Section 17 of the Code, the powers of
the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended w.e.f. 02/05/2024.

B. Shareholder’s Right: The Company does not consider circulating the Half Yearly declaration of
financial results separately to each household of the Shareholders. The results are published in
one local English and one Bengali newspaper

C. Modified opinion (s) in audit report: The Company’s Financial Statements has been accompanied
with Auditor’s qualification for financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

D. Separate Posts of Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer: During the FY 2023-24, the
Company has same individual as the Chairman and the Managing Director or Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. However, after the close of FY, Pursuant to the Insolvency
Commencement Order and in consonance with the stipulation contained in Section 17 of the
Code, the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company stand suspended w.e.f. 02/05/2024.

E. Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor of the Company reports all the matters
considered to its audit directly to the Audit Committee.

DISCLOSURE OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS
SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO (I) OF REGULATION 46(2) OF
SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

Due to limited information available, RP cannot comment to the extent compliances were fulfilled
by the suspended Board of Directors during or for the FY 2023-24. It is pertinent to mention that
the Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP"), including the Company Secretary and Chief Financial
Officer, had resigned before the commencement of the CIRP, and the Managing Director remains
unapproachable. Due to this, access to several statutory records and registers has been significantly
limited. Further, the Company has had no income generating business operations, and its plant has
remained non-operational since October 2022. The financial condition of the Company has
deteriorated significantly, making it difficult to maintain proper compliance under various laws.
However, Resolution Professional is trying to comply all mandatory and event-based compliances
to the extent information and records available.
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CODE OF CONDUCT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel as adopted is
available on the Company’s website www.impexferrotech.com. However, after the closure of FY 2023-
24, the board has been suspended so no such declaration could be obtained from member of the Board.
RP has not come across any declaration or confirmation of Code of Conduct from any member of
Board for FY2023-24

CODE OF CONDUCT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As per the provisions of section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors shall
abide by the provisions specified in Schedule IV. Further, Schedule IV lays down a Code for
Independent Directors of the Company. Pursuant to the said provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company has drafted a Code for Independent Directors of the Company and ensures that all the
Independent Directors of the Company follows the same. However, after the closure of FY 2023-24,
the board has been suspended so no such declaration could be obtained from member of the Board. RP
has not come across any declaration or confirmation of Code of Conduct from any member of Board
for FY2023-24

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

The CFO certification has not been submitted to the Board which forms an integral part of this
Annual Report. The company Chief Financial Officer (CFO) has resigned w.e.f 11/04/2024 and
since then no new CFO has joined the company as the company is admitted in CIRP under
IBC,2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE

During the year 2023-24, RP is not able to comment that the Company has fully complied with all
the mandatory requirements as mandated under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for the purpose of ensuring Corporate Governance. A Certificate
from the Practicing Company Secretary to this effect has been included in this report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Impex Ferro Tech Limited

Sd-

Ashok Kumar Sarawagi

Resolution Professional of M/s Impex Ferro Tech Limited

IBBI Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00171/2017-18/10340
Authorization for Assignment (“AFA”): AA1/10340/02/300625/107208
AFA Validity: June 30, 2025

Place: Kolkata

Date: 14 May, 2025
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
Impex Ferro Tech Limited (In CIRP)

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Impex Ferro Tech
Ltd. (‘the Company), for the year ended on 31st March, 2024, as stipulated in Chapter IV of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) of the said Company with Stock Exchanges and on the
basis of the limited information made available to us for verification by the Resolution
Professional, we cannot comment upon whether the conditions of the Corporate Governance
were fully met during the entire period.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and the documents provided to us for verification including the disclosure made with the
exchange(s) with regard to the compliance of conditions of corporate governance followed by the
company on quarterly basis, we confirm that the Company has generally complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations,
as applicable.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 18th February, 2025
For A J & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Abhijeet Jain

Proprietor

FCS: 4975

C.P. No.: 3426

PR No.: 2742 /2022

UDIN: F004975F003959684
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10) (i) of the SEBI
Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Impex Ferro Tech Limited (In CIRP)
35, Chittaranjan Avenue,

Kolkata- 700 012

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from
the Directors of Impex Ferro Tech LIMITED having CIN L27101WB1995PLC071996 and
having its Registered Office at 35, Chittaranjan Avenue, Kolkata- 700 012 (hereinafter referred to
as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate,
in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

The company is undergoing CIRP w.e.f. 02.05.2024 and the Board is suspended, and all the powers are
now vests with the Resolution Professional. We have issued this certificate based on the limited data,
information and documents received from the Company and/or the Resolution Professional, and the
status as available in the MCA Portal. In the absence of proper information, we are unable to comment
whether they are debarred from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory
Authority.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered
necessary and explanations furnished, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of
the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

Sr.No. | Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in
Company
1 Debasish Mukherjee 08529465 12/08/2019
2 Sujata Agarwal 06833458 08/10/2014
3 Aritro Roy * 08257216 10/03/2021
4 Subham Bhagat 09070773 10/03/2021
5 Sharat Malik @ 08529458 12/08/2019
6 Ritesh Chandak # 10238203 21/07/2023

It should further be read with our comments as below:

- *Mr. Aritro Roy - Director Identification Number is “DEACTIVATED” as per MCA data Base.
- @ Mr. Sharat Malik - Director Identification Number is “DEACTIVATED” as per MCA data
Base.
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- # Mr. Ritesh Chandak - Director Identification Number is “DEACTIVATED” as per MCA data
Base.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our Responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Place :Kolkata

Date :18th February, 2025
For A ] & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

CS Abhijeet Jain

Proprietor

FCS: 4975

C.P.No.: 3426

PR No.: 2742 /2022

UDIN: F004975F003959631

Annual Report 2023-24 | 66



y Phone : (033) 2282 6809

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
60, BENTINCK STREET, 4TH FLOOR
KOLKATA - 706 069
E-mail : jbs_companyigrediffinail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Te
THE MEMBERS OF
IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED
(A company under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process vide NCLT Order)

Repott on the Audit of Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED
(“the Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Financial Stalemenls”).

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Kolkata Bench, admitted the
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) application filed by a Iinancial Creditor of
Impex Ferro Tech Limited (the Company) and appointed Mr, Rajiv Kumar Agarwala as
Interim Resolution Professional (RP), in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
(The code) vide order dated 2nd May, 2024. Subsequently Mr. Ashok Kumar Sarawagi was
appointed as Resolution Professional (RP) by the Committee of Creditors (CoC) its 2nd CoC
meeting held on 14th June, 2024 as approved by virtue of e - voting by the CoC members and
turther vide order dated 12 July, 2024 by the Hon'ble court of NCLT, Kolkata. In view of
pendency of CIRP, the management of the affairs of the company and power of the Board of
Directors are now vested with RP. These financial statements have been prepared by the
management of the company and approved by RP.

In our opimion and tu the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the possible effect of the maller described in the basis for qualified opinion
section of our report, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounling Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2024, the loss and total comprchensive 1oss, changes in equity and ils cash flows
for the year ended on that date. P
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

i,

ii.

iii.

iv.

We draw your attention to Note No. 36 of the accompanying Financial Results regarding non-
provision of interest expense on the borrowings of the Company for the vear ended 31 March,
2024 for Rs. 10658.95 lakhs. (Cumulative Non-Provisioning of Rs. 63020.22 lakhs #l 31.03.2024)
which is not in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 23: Borrowing Costs read with Ind AS
109: Financial Instruments.

Had the aforesaid interest expense been recognized, the finance cost for the year ended 31st March,
2024 would have been Rs. 10660,23 lakhs instead of Rs. 1.28 lakhs. The fotal expenses for the year
ended 31st March, 2024 would have beent Rs. 17534.72 lakhs instead of Rs. 6875.77 lakhs. The Net
Loss after tax for the year ended 31st March, 2024 would have been Rs. 13641.80 lakhs instead of
reported amount of Rs. 2982.85 lakhs. Total comprehensive Loss for the year ended 31st March,
2024 would have been Rs. 13647.05 lakhs instead of reported amornt of Rs. 2988.10 lakhs. Other
equity as on 31.03.2024 would have been Rs. (102627.62 Inkhs) instead of reported amount of Rs.
(39607.40 lakhs) and current financial Liability as on 31st March, 2024 would have been Rs.
63036.26 lakhs instead of reported amount of Rs. 16.04 lakhs.

With reference to Note No. 43 Other Expenses includes provisioning of expected credit loss (ECL)
of Rs. 313.60 lakhs on Trade Receivable & Rs. 393.53 lakhs on Advance to parties as considered
prudent by the management, in view of non-realisations for long time, to chauge the ECL policy of
the company wiiich has resulted in excess provision, In the absence of other corroborative evidence,
we are ynable to contment on carrying amount of such receivable on which ECL has been provided.

As referred in Note No 46 of the Financial Statements, “Trade Receivables”, “Trade
payables”, “Advances from Customer”, “Advances Recoverable in Casch or Kind” and
“Advance to Suppliers and Other Parties” etc includes balances remaining outstanding for
a substantial period. The balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. In the
absence of above and other corroborative evidence, we unable to comment on the extent
to which such balances are recoverable. The reported Financials might have consequential
impact which remains unascertained.

As referred in Note No 37 of the Financial Statements, as a part of CIRP, creditors were
called upon to submit their claims. In aggregate the claim submitted by the financial
creditors as well as operational creditors exceeded the amount as appearing in the books
of account/financials. The process of submitting claims is still going on and it is also
under verification and reconciliation by RP with amount as appearing in books. Pending
reconciliation and final outcome of such process, no accounting impact in the books of
account has been made in respect of excess, shortage, non-receipt of claims from
operational and financial creditors. Hence, consequential impact if any on the reported
financial Statements js currently not ascertainable.

We have been informed that certain information including minutes of CoC meeting and
the outcome of certain procedures carried out as part of CIRP process are confidential in
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nature and could not be shared with anyone other than Committee of Creditors and
NCLT. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the possible financial impact,
presentation and disclosures, if any on aforesaid information not provided to us.

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute. of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to the Note 35 to the financial statements regarding preparation of the
financial statements on going concern basis which slales lhat the company has incurred cash
losses, its liabilities exceeded its total assets and its net worth has been fully eroded as on
31.03.2024. Since, the CIRP is currently under process as per the IBC Code, it is required that
the company be managed as going concern during the CIRP. The f{inancial stalemenls is
confinued to be prepared on going concern basis. However there exists material uncertainty
about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern since the same is dependenl upon
the resolution plan to be formulated and approved by NCLT. The appropriateness of
preparation of the financial statements on going concern basis is critically dependent upon
CIRP as specified in the IBC Code.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.
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How our audit addressed the key. o

Audit Matter

Claim and exposure relating to taxation and
litigation

Our audit procedures included the
following:

1.

The Company has material uncertain tax
positions including matters in respect of
disputed claims /levies under various taxes
and legal matters.

The taxes and litigation exposures have been
identified as key audit matter due to:

i Litigation cases require significant
judgement due to complexity of the case and
mvolvement  of  various  authorities.

it. These involve significant management
judgment to determine the possible outcome
of the uncertain tax positions.

Emphasis of Matter

Our audit procedures include the
following substantive procedures:

+ Obtained understanding of key
uncertain tax positions;

* We have reviewed and analysed
key correspondences relating to
dispute;

* We have discussed the matter for
key uncertain tax positions with
appropriate  senior management;

* We have evaluated management’s
underlying key assumplions in
estimating the tax provisions; and
Assessed management’s estimate of
the possible oulcome of the
disputed cases;

With reference to Note 39 of the financial statements regarding non-provision of arrear bills of Rs.
968.54 lakhs (electricity charges) demanded in previous year by Damodar Vally Corporation (DVC)
pertaining to F.Y. 2017-18 to 2019-20, which has been challenged and pending before Hon'ble Appellate
Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL) and the aforesaid liability has neither considered as expenses nor

provision is made in the financial statenients for the vear ended 315t March 2024.

Other Matter

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

With reference to Note 38 to the financial statement, the manufacturing operation of the plant of the
company sttunted at Kalyancsheri, West Bengal hus been temporarify stut down since October, 2022
due to disconnection of power supply by the Damodar Valley Corporation (DVC).
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Return but does not include the
Financial Statements and our Auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibilily is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibility of the Management & Resolution Professional for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 with respect o the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance and cash flow of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Acl for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates thal are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial stalement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or (v cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

As the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process has been initiated in respect of the company
under the provision of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (The Code) by the National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata Bench, vide its order dated 2nd May, 2024, the
powers of the Board of Dircclors stand suspended as per section 17 of the Code and such
power is being exercised by the Resolution Professional appointed by the NCLT by the said
order under the provisions of the Code,
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This statement which is the responsibility of the company’s management and has been signed
by and taken on record by the Resolution Professional.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
mfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of the material misstatement of the financial statement,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo
those risks, and obtain audit evidence (hal is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulfing from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are imadequate, to modify our opinion,
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
Auditor’s report. However, future evenis or conditions may cause the Company to

cease Lo conlune as a going concerrn,

¢ Evaluale (he overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.




Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the statements
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the {inancial statement of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors
‘report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequence of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benelits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

I.  Asrequired by Section 143(3} of the Act, we report that:

a) Except for the possible effect of the matter described in the basis for gqualified opinion
section of our report, we have sought, and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpeses of our
audit,

b) Except for the possible effect of the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion
section of our report, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive losses,
the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of accounts.
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d) Except for the possible effect of the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion

8)

h)

section of our report, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

The matter described in the basis for qualified opinion section of our report, may have
adverse effect on the functioning of the company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its direclors during lhe year is
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect (o the other matlesrs to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial position
in the Financial Statements. Refer Note 28 to its financial statements.

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

¢) The company is not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education and
Protection Fund pertaining to unpaid dividend.

d) i. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or Ioaned
or invested (cilher from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
wiitimg ox otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guaranler, secarily or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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it. The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefictaries.

iii, Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circaumstances, nothing has come to our notice thal has caused us o belicve that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.

e) The company has neither declared nor paid dividend during the year. Hence,
compliance of provision of section 123 of the Companies Act 2013 does not arise.

f) Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining ils books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did nol come across any instance of audil Lrail feature being tampered with.

As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For JBS & Company
Chartered Accountants

@91:§23734E

CA. Gouranga Paul
Partner

Membership No: 063711

Date; 28.10.2024
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 24063711BKFCSW1483
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“ANNEXURE A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal &
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 315t March, 2024, we report that:

(D) (&) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of property, plant, and equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of

intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company have been physically verified
by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were

noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the imumovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee), as disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Hence, reporting of

other information under clause 3 (i} (d) of the said order is not required.

{e} Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have
been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion the frequency of such verification is reasonable. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregale for each class of inventories were

noticed on such physical verification of inventories,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of
the year, the Company had been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5
crore in aggregate from bank or financial institution on the basis of security of
Current Assets and the company is not submitling periodical relurn or stafement
to the respective banks / financial institution for the reason as disclosed in Note 36
to the financial statement.
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(iii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company during the year has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans/ advances in nature of loans, secured or unsecured
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Hence
reporting of other information under clause 3 (iii)(a) to {f} of the said Order is not

required.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans,
or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

(v} According to the information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our
examination of the bocks of account, the company has not accepted any deposits
from the public and there is no amounts which are deemed to be deposits and
consequently, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and provisions of
Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and
rules made there under [the Companies {Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015] with
regard to the deposits are not applicable to the company.

(vi) Pursuant lo the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is
required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Acl in
respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) According to the ifnformation and explanation given to us and own the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company has generally delayed in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Tax deducted at source, Employees State Insurance
(ESI), Professional Tax, Service Tax, GST, and other statutory dues during the year with
appropriate authorilies.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed antounis payable
in respect of the above were in arrears as at 31t March, 2024 for a period of more than six
months from the date on when they become payable excepl e fellowing:

SL.No Nature of dues Amount (Rs.} in lakhs
1 Service Tax Payable 105.42
2 GST Payable 88.22
2 TDS Payabin 14.98
4 ES! Payahie 1.45
8 Professionta Tax Payable 0.03
Total 2106.10
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Interest, penalty if any on the above remain unascertained and not provided for in the financial
statement for the vear ended 31st March, 2024.

(b} According to the information and cxplanations given fo us and records of the company
examined, and the particulars or statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above as on 31¢
March,2024 which have not been deposited on account of dispute are as follows:

Statute Mature of Period to which | Amount Invelved Ferum in which dispute Is pending
Dues the amount relates {Rs. In lzcs)
2006-07 £2. 35| Conmissioner of Cenlral Excise [Agpeals) (1)
Central Excise Act 20809  15.85{Centat, Kedkaia Branch . .
Exgize Duty  |2014-15 B.054Excise, Asansol Pivision { show covse notice received and reply will be submitted)
1894 p bt ]
1415 795 ]
201213 1o 1778.07 Weits Peulition tied and ponding under ch'_l_:v:_ igh Courtof Caloutta
Total 1619.99]Duty Pald under protest 12.6% facs
2010-11 4,305.41 {Undar Appez| pendivg with O Appeat 21 kalkata
2113 7,002,956 [Pending under ITAT
2014-15 18,95 |Pending water ITAT
Income Tax Act - - - - - - -
1961 Income Tax | 20158-1% £,605.54 |Under Aapedl peading vith G Appeal 21 kelkata
15-37 L77 |Under dppeal perding with (i1 Anpeal 21 kolkata
ORI IAWY, (Undel Anpeal pandivg with CIV Appeal 20 kothets
072-35 1,622.0% Wnder Sape i peading with CIT Appest 21 kulkala
Total 21,159.01 '
200506 283,87 |WBLT, Apgeflate snd Revisional 8oird
CentralSulesTax&| o De0e-07 47991 JWRCT, Apaelliie snd Revisions) Board
Locat Sales Tax 2698-0% TILAS BCT dopellate and Revisiomal Boped
200910 QY24 [5r Joimt Commissigner of Comnmiencial Taxey
Total o 168602 o
WHREMtryTaxact | EmtyTax  |2012131017-18 S14.03 | Kairbie High Conrt of Caboutts
‘row . 504.91 .................................. —_

(viii) According to the informalion and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the books of accounts and other records, there were no transactions
unrecorded in the books of account and which were surrendered or disclosed as income
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during the year.

(ix) (a) With reference to Note 36 to the financial statements, various credit facilities availed
from United Bank of India (UBI), Bank of Baroda (BOB) and State Bank of India (SBI)
have been assigned in favour of Rare Asset Reconstruction Ltd (RARE).

The lender (RARE) have submitted their claim and as admitted by Resolution
Professional (RP) amounting to Rs. 91068.97 lakhs which includes principal of Rs.
28048.75 lakhs and cumulative interest of Rs. 63020.22 fakhs (Interest for the year 2023-24
for Rs. 10658.95 lakhs) and the Company has defaulted in payment of interest and
repayment of principal on borrowings to aforesaid banks/ financial institutions since

January 2016 and remain unpaid to the extent as above,

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

of the other records, the company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank

or financial institutions or other lendoer.
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(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not taken
term loan during the year. Hence reporting of information under clause 3 (ix) (c) of the

said Order is not applicable.

(d) As mentioned above, the company has not taken any leans or other borrowings from
lenders during the year. Hence, reporting of information whether funds raised on short
term basis have been utilized for long term purposes under clause 3 (ix) (d) of the said

Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the other records, the company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures. Hence reporting of information under clause 3 (ix) (e) & (f) of the said Order is

not applicable.

(%) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, reporting of

information under clause 3 (x) (a) of the said Order is not applicable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures (fully, partially
or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore, reporting of information under

clause 3 (x) {b) of the said Order is not applicable,

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no
fraud by the Company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the

year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no
report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during, the year and up to the date of this repoxt.

(c) According to provision of section 177(9) of the Companies Act 2013 read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
establishment of Vigil Mechanism or Whistle ~ Blower Palicy under SEBI LODR
Regulations is applicable to the company. As per information and explanation
provided Lo us by the management, no Whistle - Blower Complaints received by the
company during the year.
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(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable
to it, the reporting under Clause 3(xii){a} to (¢) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,

(xiii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financtal
Statements as required by the applicable accounling standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The company has furnished us reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under
audit which were considered by us in the course of Audit.

(xv}) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting in respect of
compliance of provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act 2013 is not required.

{(xvi) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not conducted any Non Banking Financial or
Housing Finance Activities without a valid certificate of registration (CoR) from Reserve
Bank of India.

(c) Based upon the andit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as
defined in the regulations made by the Reserve bank of India. Therefore, reporting under
clause 3 (xvi) (¢} of the said Order is not applicable.

(d) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC)
as part of Group. Therefore, reporting under clause 3 {xvi) (d) of the said Order is not
applicable.
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(xvii)n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
incurred cash losses during the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year,
Except for the possible effect of the matter described in the basis for gualified opinion section of our
report, the cash losses incurred by the company is as follows:

Rs. In lakhs
_ Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
‘Cash losses (2,331,41) (2,698.83)

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, there has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors
of the company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is
not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realizations of financial assets and payment of the
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, management
plans, admission & ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) Process
against the company and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, which causes us to belief that there is material uncertainty exists as on the

~ date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
/ inability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audil report and we neither give any guaranlee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get

discharged / not discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

{(xx} The section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3 (xx) (a) & (b) of the said Order is not applicable.

(xxi) The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly,
clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For |BS & Company

Chartered Accounlanls

WSZE’SA&E

CA. Gouranga Paul
y Partner
Membership No: 063711

Date: 28.10.2024
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 24063711 BKFCS5W1483
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ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. IMPEX
FERRO-TECH LIMITED (”the Company”) as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial
Controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered  Accountants of India (ICAT). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing issued by ICAI and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable (o an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures Lo oblain audit evidence aboul the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operaling ellecliveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over fimancial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk (hal a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial conirol over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the intherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibilily of collusion or improper management override of conltrols, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to fulure periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over [inancial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
conirols system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential compenents

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Inteinal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For JBS & Company
Chartered Accountants

@BN: 323734F,

CA. Gouranga Paul
Partner
embership No: 063711

Dale: 28.10.2024
Place: Kolkata
UDIN: 2406371 1BKFCSW 14573
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IMPEX FERR(Q TECH LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024
[ Rs./Lakhs}

[a) Property, Plant & Equipment 4 16,572.57 14,865.24
{k} Intangible Assets 4 1.35 1.35
{¢) Financial Assets
[iY ther Financial Azsets 5A 15.29 21.48
{d) Other Non-Current Assets 5B - 46.13
Total Non-Current Assets 16,592.21 14,934.20
{2} CURRENT ASSETS
{a) inventories 6 - 2,964,438
{b] Financial Assets
{I) Trade Receivables 7 - 636.09
{ii) Cash And Cash Equivalents 8 44.99 1230
(iii] Qther Bank Balances (Other than jif 1 23.44 13,44
(tii} Other Financial Assets op 183 -
{c} Current Tax Assets [Met) 95 267.94 317.51
(d) Other Current Assets 10 326,51 1,629.24
Tatal Current Assets 664.71 5,573.06
Total Assets 17,256,92 20,507.26
n EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Fequity
Equity Share Capital 11 8,793.16 8,793.16
Other Equity 11 {39,607.40) (36.619.29)
Total Equity (30,814.2a) (27,826.13)
Liabitities
{1]) Nor-Current Liabilities
{alFinancial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 12 26,759.99 26,762.59
(b} Beferrod Government Grant 14 8215 90.17
() Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assels) 15 - -
(d] Provisions 13 110.956 2511
Total Non-Current Liabilities 26,951.10 2G,877.87

[2) CURRENT LIABILITEES
(a)Financial Lizbilitles
(i} Borrowings 13 210
{ii} Trade Payables

Total Qurstanding Dues of Micre
Enterprises and Small Enterprises 1372
Tatal Outstanding Dues of Creditor other

than Micro Enterprizes and Small

Enterprises 16 1679741 11,415.06

{iiiy Other Financial Liabilities 17A 16.04 16.04

{b} Other Current Liabilities 175 4,284.24 9,216.22

{c) Provisions 18 049 65.92
Total Current Liabilities 21,120.06 21455,52
Tatal Equity & Liabilities 17,256.92 20,507.26

Summary of Material accounting poficies 3

Accompanying notes are an Integral pan of Lhe (nancial sldtetnents

As per our report of even date

For IBS & Company For and an behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 323739 P
ég/ &ve\/\&w)g”‘r\
B N For impex furro Tech Limited

Ashok Kumar Sarawagl
Resolution Professional

CA Gouranga Paul
Partrer

Membership No: 063711
Kalkata, 28th Oct, 2024




IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

Revenue From Cperations

1] Other Income
I Total Income (I-+1)

v EXPENSES:

Cost of Materials Consumed

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goads and Work in Progress
Purchase of Trading Goods

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation And Amortization Expense

Other Expenses

Total Expenses {IV)

v Profit/{Loss) before Exceptional ltems & Tax (I1-1V}
VI Exceptional items (Expensef{income))

Vil Profit/[Loss) before Tax
VIl Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
IX  Profit/{Loss) for the Year {V-vi)

X Other Comprehensive Income

A, (i) Items that will noL Le yeclassified W profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/{losses) to defined benefit plans
{ii)Income Laxes on items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

B.  (i}items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
{ii}income taxes on items that will be reclassified to profit or
loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income [Net of Taxes)

X Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (VII+VIIE)

Earning Per Equity Share {Nominal Value of Share - Rs, 10/-)
X! Basic & Diluted

Summary of Material accounting policies

{ Rs./Lakhs) :

19 2,750.21 14,338.17

20 1,142.71 165.22

3,802.92 14,503.39

21 1,132.32 10,868.94

22 1,422.89 1,200.22

23 - 12017

24 39.03 57.06

25 1.28 0.96

a 651.44 AN 95

26 3,628.81 6,164.25

6,875.77 19,072.54

{2,982.85) {4,563.15)

- {1,209.37)

(2,882.85) {3,369.78)

{2,982.85) {3,359.78)

5.25 (7.80)

5.25 (7.30)

(2,988.10) {3,367.58)

32 {3.39) (3.82)
3

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For JBS & Company

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 323734E

CA Gouranga Paul
Partner
Membership No: 063711

Place: Kolkata
28th October,2024

For and on behalf of the Board

%&.W UQ’Q\’\
-

For Impex ferro Tech Limited
Ashok Kumar Sarawagi

Resolution Professional

Kotkaty - h 7
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IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 2024

[ Rs.In Lakhs)

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax & Extra-Ordinary ltems
Adjustments for ;
Depreciation
Finance costs
Amortisation of Government Grant
Provision/(Reversal) for supplement payment on retirement

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments for :
{increase)/Decrease in Inventories
{Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables
{Increase}/Decrease in Other Mon Current Financial Assets
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increasef{Decrease) in Qther Liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Direct Tax Paid
Net Cash from Operating Activities

[B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Deposits (Maturity of 3 months or more)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increasef{Decrease) in Borrowings
Finance Costs

Net Cash from Financing Activities

Net Increase/{Decrease} in Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents ar the heginning of the year
Cash & Cash Equivaients at the end of the year

{2,982.85) (3,359.78)
651.44 660.95
1.28 0.96
(10.02) {10.02)
{5.25) {7.80)
637.45 644.09
(2,345.40) (2,715.70) :
2,964.48 2,369.96
636.09 (233.22)
44.21 5.95
1,302.72 32.58
4,660.75 (920.61)
{4,911.56} 1,977.06
4,696.80 3,171.71
2,351.40 456,01
45.56 {49.56)
2,100.97 406.44
{2,358.78) {358.52)
f6.81) 1,334.32
{2,365.59) 1,975.80
{1.41) {2,247.64)
{1.28) {0.96)
{2.69) (2,248.60)
32,69 {366.36)
12.30 378.67
44.99 12.30

Accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For JBS & Company
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 323734 TS
(oD (555

CA Gouranga Paul
Partner bA ;ﬁ"‘,’
Membership No: 063?11Q e ‘r‘\/

r
o
[

Kolkata, 28th Oct, 2024 i

1 KOLKATA

for and on behalf of the Board

For Impex ferro Tech Limited
Ashok Kumar Sarawagi
Resolution Professional
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IMPEX FERRO-TECH LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES 1N EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

{ Rs. in Lacs)
Particy Numbers {inlacs) | 7 Amount -
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 879.32 8,793.16
Changes in equity share capital during 2022-23 - -
Balance as at 315t March, 2023 879.32 §,793.16
Changes in equity share capital during FY 2023-24 - .
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 8£79.32 8,793.15
B. OTHER EQUITY
1} Currgﬁt Reporting period .
A ta thi

".-ﬁet:a_ir_n_ed"ia'rﬁ'i s

Balance as at 1t April, 2023 ' 246, 142,020.48) (36,619.30)

Profit f/{Loss) Error Previous year - -

Profit f({Lass) for the year - - 12,982 85) {2,982.85)
Other Comprehensive Loss - - [5.25) [5.25}
Total Comprehensive Incame 133.80 5,246.67 {45,003.32) 15.46 (39,607.40%

Depreciation charge - - _— . -
Bplanteayat 315t March 202 : : ; C - Ihia5,003.92) '

{2) Previous Reporting Period (Rs.in Lacs)

Balance as at 1st April, 2022 133.80 E.246.67 (28,650.568) 28.51 [33,251.70)
Profit f{Loss) adjustment for Previous year - -

Profit/{Loss) for the year - - {3,359.80) (3,359.80}
Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss) - - {7.80) (7.80}

Total Comprehensive Income 133.80 5,246.67 {42,020.47) 20,71 {36,619.30)
Depreciation charge - - -
Balance as at 31st.March, 2023 i B 133.80 |- . - - 524667 | - (az020a7y|- - 2071 (36,619.30)

Materlaf accounting policies: Note no. 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemaents

As per our report of even date attached

For JBS & Company For and on behalf of the Board

Charterad Accountants -

FRN: 323734E Bleronsogy

For Impex ferro Tech Limited
Ashok kumar Sarawgi

Resalution Professinal
CA Gouranga Paul

Partner

Membership No: 063711
Place: Kolkata

28th October, 2024
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1 Company Overview
Impex Ferro Tech Ltd, "the company” is domiciled in India and was incorporated in June, 1995 under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956. The company has its registered office situated in Kolkata and manufacturing facility at Kalyaneshwari, Burdwan, West Bengal. The
Company Is primarly engaged in manufacture of Ferro Alloys (ferro-manganese / silico manganese), trading in iron & steel products. As a
part of backward integration, the Company has 30 MW Power Plant.

2 Basis of preparation

a} Statement of Compliance

—

These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) {to the extent notified) and
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except far certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended),

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b} Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('} which is Company's presentation currency. The functional currency of the

¢} Basis of measurement

S

The Financlal Statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for certain financial assets &
Liabilities that are al fair value famurlised cost. frefer note 3(B) below).

d

—

Use of judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions-

{i} Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment:

The Company reviews the estimated useful fives and residuat values of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
During the current Financial Year, the management determined that there were no changes to the useful lives and residual values of the
property, plant and equipment.

{iijaAllowances for doubtful debts

The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade and other receivables. The
identificalien of doubtful debts requires use of Judgement and cstimates. Where the expectation is ditterent from the ariginal estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debts expenses in the peried in which such
estimate has been changed.

{iii)Allowances for Inventories

Management reviews the inventory age fisting on a periodic basis, This review involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged
inventory items with the respective net realisable vaiue, The purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance is required 1o be made in the
Financial Slatesnents for any obsolete and slow-moving items.




—

{vi) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial fiabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using certain valuation technigues. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of Judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

{v} Defined benefit plans:

The cost of the defined benefit plan includes gratuity and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations using projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

{vl) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:

The certain key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is towards known contractual
obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, duties and other levies, if any, in respect of which management
believes that there are present obligations and the settlement of such obligations are expected to result in outflow of resources, to the
extent provided for.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policics and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities. 1he Coripany has ua established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair valugs.
The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valvation adjustments.

Fair values are categorized into different Jevels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived frem prices}).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not basad on observable markot data {unobservable inputs),

When measuring the fair value of an asset or o liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible, If the inpuls used to
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the faie value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorlzed i Its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has

occurred,
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3 Material accounting policies

a) Operating Cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normai operating cycle and other criteria set out
in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financiat Statements based on the nature of products and the
time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,

b} Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and z financiai liability or equity instrument of angther|

entity.

—

i. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised Initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assels not recorded at fair value through profit or {oss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade raceivables are initiafly measured at transaction price.
Regular way purchase and sale of financlal assets are aceounted for at trade date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
* Amortised cost

* Fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOQ)

* Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL}

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business
modef for managing financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whosa objective is to hold tha astot in order Lo golleet
contractual cash fiows and whe contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash Aows that are solely payments of
principat and Interest on the principal amount outstanding,

The ellective interest rate (EiR) amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTOCI

A financial asset Is measured at FYTOC if it is held within a business mode! whose objective is achioved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FYTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {oCl),

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FYTPL, Financial assets included within the FYTPL
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financia! asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the
financial assct and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109,
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it. Financial liability

Initial recognition and measurament
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are intially measured at fair value.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following categories:
* Financial liabilities through profit or loss (FYTPL)

+ Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities through FYTPL

A financial liabifity s classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-fer-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at aniortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the £IR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amartisation process, For trade and other payables maturing
within one year from the balance sheet date. the carrying amnunts approvimates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Derivative financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

The Company uses various derivative financial instruments to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates, exchange rates and commodity,
prices. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are also subsequently measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges which is recognised in Other Comprchensive Income and later to Statement of Profit and Loss when
the hedged item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recoghition
of a non-financial assets or non-financial liability.
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Derecognition

A financial fiability {or a part of a financial liability} is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms shall be accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial fability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the
terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor} shall be accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liabifity and the recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liahility} extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabiities assumed, shall be recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company
currently has a legaily enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultanecusly.

c) Property, plant and equipment

—

l. Recognition and measurement
ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, ptant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to
its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site an which it is
lacated. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of those qualifying property, plant and equipment, which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised.

Praperty, plant & equipment is eliminated from (he linancial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and eguipiment is recognised in profit or loss. Cost of the tangible assets
not ready for their intended use at the Balance Sheet date together with all relatod expenses are shown as Capital Work-in-Progress.

it. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure §s capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow
to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.Depreciation on fixed assets are provided on
straight line method over the usefu! lives of assets, at the rates and in the manner specified in Part C of Schedule If of the Act.The rates of
depreciation as prescribed in Part C of Schedule 11 of the Act are considered as the minimurn rates. Freehald iand is not depreciated.
Leasehold land {includes development cost) is amertised on a straight line basis over the period of respective lease, except land acquired on
perpetual lease.Depreciation methods, useful ives and rosidual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as appropriate.
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iv. Intangible Assets and Amortisation

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Computer software is amortised over its estimated useful life of 3
years on a straight line basis. The amortisation period and the amortisation methad are reviewed at least at each financial year end, if the
expected useful life of the asset is different from previous estimates, the cha nge is accounted for

prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

d

—

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost of inventories compries material cost on FIFO basis, labour and
manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing the iventories to their present [ocation and condition. Cost of finished goods includes excise
duty till 30/06/2017. The cost of Work-In-Progress and Ffi nished goods includes the cost of labour, material and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads.

e

——

Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments: financial assets
Expected credit tosses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financiais assets in FYTPL category.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 103, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all
originated or acquired financiatl assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its
Initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases
significantly since its initial recognition. The Company's trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and [oss allowance
on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses ie. expected cash shortfaff,

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company’s non-financial asscts are reviewed at rach reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. For
impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units {CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cagh inflows that arc fargely independent 6f the cash influws ol ulher assets or
CGUs. if any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or CGL is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any,
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its racoverable amount,
The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of|

money and risk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the cstimate of recoverable amount,

f

—r

Foreign Currency Transactions

{a) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

{b) Canversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost
denominated in foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

{c} Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of maonetary items are recognised as incoma or as expense in the year in which they arise.

{d) Forward Exchange Contracts

Forward Exchange Contracts outstanding as at the year end on account of firm commitment transactions are translated at period end
exchange rates and the resultant gains and losses as well as the gains and losses on cancellation of such contracts are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.




g) Government grants
Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with, When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts
over the expected useful fife of the related asset.

h

—

Employee Benefits

i. Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions as per the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 towards provident fund and family pension
fund are charged to the Statement of Profi t and Loss for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There is no other
obligation other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.

il

iii. Defined henefit plans

The Company has an Employees Gratuity Fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The liability in respect of gratuity and
other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is
expected to be derived from employees’ services. Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment are charged to
Lhe Ohier Comprehensive Income, Short-Term Compensated Absences are provided for based on estimates.

i) Provisions {other than for emplovee benefits)
Pravisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the oblipation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance

cost.

j} Revenue Recognition .
i) Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. Revenue
from sales of goods is recognised when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods
are transferred to the customer, which generally coincides with delivery

i} Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in the perfods in which the services are rendered.

iii) Export entitlements in the form of Duty Drawback and MEIS scheme are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account when
right to receive credit as per the terms of the schema is established in respect of exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty
regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant exports proceeds.

Iv) Interest Jncome is recognised using the effective interest rate method. Dividend Income is recognised only when the right to receive
payment is established, provided it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group, and the
amount of the dividend can be measurad reliably.

k) Income tax
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss

except to the extent that it refates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in OC1,

w—

i. Current tax
Curreat tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax

rates and faws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.,
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it. Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the Jiability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax {aws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting pariod.

1) Research and Development Expenses
Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is charged as an expense through the normal heads of account in the year in which the
same is incurred. Capital expenditure incurred on equipment and facilities that are acquired for research and development activities is
capitalised and is depreciated according to the policies followed by the Compa ny.

m) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs divectiy attributable to
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the pericd in which they are incurred.

Where there is an unrealised exchange loss which is treated as an adjustment to interest and subsequently there is a realised or unrealised
gain in respect of the settlement or translation of the same berrowing, the gain to the extent of the loss previously recognised as an
adjustment is recognised as an adjustment to interest.

n} Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpase of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average numbor of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity sharas,

o} Expenditure on new projects & substantial expansion

Preliminary project expenditure, capital expenditure, indirect expenditure incidental and related to construction/ implementation, Interast
on term loans to finance fixed assats and expenditure on start-up of the project are capitalised upto the date of commissioning of project to
the cost of the respective assats,

.f
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IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED
NOTES Ty FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

{Rs.{ Lacs)
315t March; 2023

15t March, 2024

18.30 2148
13.30 21.48

nO H ¢
{Unsecured, Considerad go
Capital Advances 23.10 46.13
Less: Alfowance for expected cradit doss [ Refer Note no 43) 23.10 -
- 46.13
(Rs. fLacs)

‘315t March, 2024 - 315t March, 20237

NOTE 6 - INVENTORIES
[As taken, valued and certified by the management)

Raw iviaterials - 1,115.85
Work In Progress - 122.48
Finished Gooads - 1,300.41
Stores & Spares - 424.20
Packing Materfal - 1.50
- 2,964.48

Notes:

a] For detalls of Inventory hypathecated as security against secured berrowings refer note no. 12 8 13
[Rs. fLacs)

i 315t March, 2024 . 31st Margh;202
NOTE 7 - TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured

Considered Good 0.00 £36.09
Considered Doubtful 411,00 97.3%
411.00 723.49
Less: Aliowanre for espectod eredin Inss [ Refer nate no 43) 111.00 47,20
{411.00) {97.39)
- 636.09

Age analysis of trade receivables as on 31.03.2024

utstanding for the following Beripdsfrom due daté of Payment

Undisputed:

- Considered good

- which have significant increase in credit risk

- Credit Impaired - - 10.04 1741.63 226.33
Disputed:

- Considered good

- which have significant increase in eredit risk

- Credit Impaired

Total - - 10,04 174.63 226.33
Less : Allowance for expected eredit loss : - 10.04 174.63 226.33
Net Total - .

Undisputed:
- Considered good 23259 11282 95,39 14348 142.20
- which have significant increase in credit rlsk - . . _
- Credit Impaired - - R
Disputed:
- Considered good - - _
-whlch have sipniticant increase in credit risk - - . -

- Credit Impaired - - i _ .
Total 232.59 119.82 55.39 143.48 14220
Less : Allewence for expected credit [oss : - - s 2152 7L10
Net Total 232.59 112.32 90.62 121.96 71.30
Notes:

4} For details of Book debts hypothecated as security against secuved bossowings cefor note no. 17 & 13
b) The company’s expesure to credit risk and loss allowance to trade receivables is disclosed in note 49(i} & note ne 43
¢) Trade receivable includes NIL{ 501.33 lacs) due from related party [refer note 31)
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IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED

NOTES TO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3157 MARCH, 2024

[fs./ Lacs)

315t March, 2024 31st Maréh, 202;

PR A K
NOTE B - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
i (AYCash In Hand (a5 Certifled)
|B} Balance With Banks
In Current Accounts

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

1i)  Bank balance other than cash & cash equivalents as above

.97 i.73
44,92 10.57 ’
44,93 12.30 .
23.44 13.44
23.44 13,44
[Rs.f Lacs)

<. 315t March, 2024 *: :3ist March; 2023

NOTE 9A - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
[Unsecured, Consldered good, unless otheriwse stated)
Accrued fnterest on bank depasit

NOTE 98 - CURRENT TAX ASSET {NET]
Income Tax Payments /TDS Receivabie
MAT Credit Entitlement

1.83 -

1.23 -
74.65 124.21
193.30 193.30
267.95 31251

{Rs.f Lacs)

"'32st March; 2024 . . ..31st March, 2023

NOTE 10 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS "

{Unsecured, Considered good, unless otheriwse stated)

Advances recoverabile in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss { Refer to note no 43}
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
Balance with Central Excise & CENVAT Receivable

VAT Credit Receivable / Refundable

Prepald Expenses

)

370.43 1,332.69 [
37043 .

0.00 1,332.69
219.00 193.04
9852 98.52
5.59 5.00
326.52 1,629.24
(Rs.f Lacs)
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IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED
NOTES TO FORMING PARY OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

[a) Recondiliation of shares

i i G R g ».31st March, 2024 7 31st March, 2023
NOTE 11 - EQUITY SHARE CARITAL
Authorised; 9,500.00 9,500.00
9,50,00,000.00 Lacs (31.03.20232 : §,50,00,000.00 Lacs } Equity Shares of Rs.10{- each
Issved, Subscribed and Paid-up capital:
8,79,31,604 (31.03.2023 : 8,79,31,604) Equity shares of Rs. 10¢- each fully paid up. 8,793.16 8,793.16

ling at the beginning and at the end of the year

315t March, 2024 315t March, 2023

. No. Iniacs .~ Amt|Rs. I.acs

d} Promoter's Shareholding:

: “ No.inlacs. - . Adt{Rs, Lacs)
At the beginning of the year 879.32 8,793 16 87332 8,793.16
Issued during the year - . - .
At the end of the year 879.32 8,783.16 879,32 8,793.16

{b) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares
The Company has anly one class of equity shares having 2 par value of Re.10 per share. Accordingly,

Company's residual assets. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time

all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the
tor time,

Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend, If any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the share holders in the ensuing

Annual General Meeting. However, no dividend has been proposed by the Board for the current vear.

Failure to pay any amount ¢alled up on shares lead (o forfeiture of shares. In the event of tiguidation of the Company,

residual assets of the Company,

[} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the

remaining after distribution of all preferential amount in proportion ta the number of equity shares held,

.7 3156 Maech, 2024 . - j o 31stiviarch, 202

Tt e Name ot ehareholder . No GT3haces] - - - % Foldmg] | No.of Sharas|” .
Suanvi Trading & Investmant Co. Pyt Ltd 150.73 i7.14 150.73
Vasupujya Enterprises Py, Lil. 106.00 12.05 106.00
Poddar Mech-Tech Services Pvt.Ltd 106.34 1209 106,34
Invesco Finance Pyt. Lid. 208.71 1236 108.71
JAstabhuja Properties Private Limited . 63.35 230 G335

NolofShores-. . oo
- hares

S Demat e

.~ Physlcal - R y
4,65, 200 - 0.53% -
Sarita Patni 35,000 - 0045 -
Rezhit Patgi 1, 75000 - .20%
Ankit Patni 1,75,600 - 0.20% -
Poddar Mech Tech Services (P) Lid. 1,08,33,750 - 12.085% -
Vasupujya Enterprises Pvi, Ltd 1,06 00,000 - 12055 -
Suanyi Trading and Investment Co. Pvr, Ltd. 1.50,73,046 - 17.14% -
Invesco Finance Pyt Lid 1,08,71,250 - 12.36% -
Astabhiuja Froperties Private Limited 63,35,000 - 7.20% -
Shreyansh Leafin Private Limited 39,50,000 - 4,498 -
Whitestone Suppliers Pvt. Ltd 24 50,000 2,795 -
6,07,64,846.00 - 69,109 -

OTHER EQUITY

Below are the gther components of other equity:

Capital Reserve 133.80 - 133.80 133.80 - 133.80
Securittes Premium 5,246.67 . 5.246.67 5,245.67 - 5.245.67
Retained Earnings [42,020.47) (238255 {45,00:3.32) [38,660.69) 13,359.78) -42,020.47
Gther Comprehensive Income Pl {5.25) 15.46 2851 17.80) 0.1

(36,619.29) [2,988.10) (39,607.40) 133,251.71) (3,367.58} {36.619.29)

(3) Capital reserve: Capital reserves cansists of Beposits forfeited against share warrants,
[b) Securities Premium: Secunties premlum represents the premium received on issue of
of the Companies Act, 2013,

() Retalned earnings: It comprise ol accumudated profitf {loss) of the Company,

[d) Other comprehensive Income { loss) represents employea benefits,

equity shares. The account is available for utilisalion in accordance with the provislons

pr—n
_r/f:-‘;__\’\g‘\f_} . r.&:\
-k

/ _____ X
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IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED
NOTES 70 FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 3157 MARCH, 2024
NOTE 12 - NON CURRENT BORROWINGS {Rs.f Lacs}
e 5 ’ - Mon-Current Portion ™~ " |.: Current Maturities:
-315t March,:2024; | 31t March, 2023 § - 315t Moarch; 2024 | 2Lstnaich, 202377 ]

K
Sacured Loans
Loan from Financial Institution
Rare Assets Reconstruction Ltd. 26,124.9% 26,127.59

Loans from Related Party (Refer Note 34)

Fram Bodies Corperate (Unsecured) 218.00 218.00 - -
Loan from others- Promoters {Unsacured) 417.00 417.00

26,759.99 26,762.59 - -
The above amount includes
Secured Borrawings 26,124.99 26,127.59 -
Unsecured Borrowings 635.00 £35.00 - -
Total 26,755,99 216,762.59 - -

[Rs.f Lacs)
315t March, 2024° ° : 315t March, 2023 .

NOTE 13 - BORROWINGS, CURRENT
Working Capital Loans Fram Banks {Secured)

Rupee Loans 8.10 6.91
.10 691
{A) Details of Security
(il Rupee Term Loans,, Working Capital Term Loans, Funded interest Term Loans and Working Capital Loan are pooled tugether and secured as under:

a) First pari-passu charge on fixed assets by way of equitable mortgage of the land & building / shed zlong with all movable and immevable Hlant & machinery
and other fixed assets thereon at Kalyaneshwari, Dist: Burdwan, West Rengal

o

First pari-passu charge on the entire Current Assets of the Company comprised of stock of raw materjals, semi linlshed and finished goods and book debts,
outstanding moneys, receivables, both gresent and future pertaining to the Company’s manufactluring units/divisions at Kalyaneshwari, Dist: Burdwan, West
Benpal

c} Collateral Security of equitable mortgage on office space at 35, €, R, Avenue, Kolkata standing in the name of the Company on pari passu basis.

d} Additional Security of Equitable mortgage of Two Floors at Lthe Corporate office uf the group at SKP House, 1324, S.P. Mukherjee foad, Kulkata - 700026
standing in the name of Marble Arch Properties Pvt Ltd on pari passu basis,

€] Personal guarantee of Promuters / Director - Mr. Suresh Kumiar Patni, Mr. Rohit Patni, & Mr. Aukit Patni.

T} Further, the restructured facilities has been secured by pledge of promoter & promoter group stake in Company {in Demat Form), representing 69.10% {P.Y
66.71%) of paid up capital of Company. Qut of that, 62.35 Iac shares wera issued during the year endod 3151 March, 2016 pursuant to COR package have been
pledged.

[B) Various credit facilities avalled from United Bank of India {UBI},Bank of Baroda {B0OB) and Stale Bank of India {SBI) have been assigned in favour of Rare Asset
Reconstruction Ltd. Pending finakization of the restructuring plan with Rare Asset Raconstruction Limiled, 1he tompany has not provided acerued interest in its
bueks as the account has been declarad NPA by the respective banks as outstanding balances shown under non current, The amount of interest has besn
recogised in the hooks of account t the extent the amount charged/realised by the banks only. {(Refer Note 36).
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IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED

NGTES TO FORMING PARY OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

. -31stMarch, 2024 . 315t Maych, 20

Deferred Government Grant

&015 90.17
80.15 9G.17

:NOTE 152 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/{ASSETS)

31stMarch, 7024, 315t March, 20237

Deferred Tax Liahility 2,856.71 2,520.07
Deferred Tax Assets [9,618.98) (12,263 .98)
Daferred Tax Liahilities/{Assets) 6,762.27) {2,743.91)
2023-24

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) in refation to: Opening Balance | Changes during the Clasing Balance
Provision for doubtful debts and advances/ other write off 25,32 [231.50) (209.18)
Property, Plant & Equipment 2,494.75 571.14 3,065.89
Unabsorbed Depreciation [3,205.07) {1,263.40) {4,468.47)
Unabsorbed Business Loss (9,058.91} 3,908.40 [5,150.51)
Total {9.743.92) 2.981.64 (6,762.27)
2022-23

Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) in relation to; Opening Balonce | Changes during the {losing Balance
Provision for doubtful debts and advances/ other write off 36.98 [11.66) 25,32
Property, Plant & Equipment 2,583.04 {88.29) 2,494.75
Unabsorbed Depreciation [3,617.13) 412.06 {3,205.07)
Unabsorbed Businegss Loss (7,751.48) (1,307.43) {9,658.91)
Total {8,748.59) = [995.52) [4,/83.91)

et doferred Tax Assel s nul been resognised as a ialer of prudence, in acoordance with IND AS-12 { Income Taxes) issued by the stititute of Chartered Accounts of india

*® £
) Ly
NS A ,/r;\é“y
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IMPEX FEARQ TECH LIMITED
NOTES TO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

(Rs.f 1acs)

315t March, 2024 31st Marih, 2023:

S

NOTE 16 - TRADE PAYABLES

Bue to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes

-Disputed

-Undisputed 1378 735.37 :
Due to others '-

-Disputed

-Undisputed 16,797.41 11,415.06

i5,811.19 12,150.42

e analysis of trade payables as on 31.63,2029

Particulars

Due to Micra, Small & Medium Enterprises - - - -
-Disputed
-Undisputed - - - - -
Dug to others
-Disputed 5,705.60 &,617.02 2,791 .83 1,696.74 16,811.19
-Undisputed
Total 5,705.60 6,617.62 2,751.83 1,696.74 16,811.19

-~ Qutstanding for the lollowing periods. from due date of Payment’
<.3i2Years o[ 23 Yea ‘| More than 3 Years- |7

Age analysis of trade payables as on 31.03.2023

“~_Oustanding for the following periods from due date of Payment L
. Totat

Dug to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Lessthan 1¥ed * 12 ¥ears. . “2-3¥ears - | “More than 3 Years

-Disputed

~Undisputed 65784 6,15 - 1.3 735.37
Due to others

-Disputed

-Undisputed 7,155.9] 2,865.03 321.73 1,072.38 1141508
Total 7,813.75 2,941.18 321.73 1,073.76 12,150.42
Note:
Trade Payable Includes Amount Payable to Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises as Follows;

: Particular, : S J7% Asast T I “hsa

(i) Principal amount remaining unpald to any supplier at the end of the accounting year March 315t, 2023 | March 31st, 20237
{ii} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accounting year 13.77 735.37

{iii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micrg, Small and Mediurm Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006, along with the amount of the paymont made o the supplier beyond the
appointed dey during each accounting year 3.30 14.45

{iv} the amount of interest due and payable for the periad of delay in making payment {which has been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year] but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2000 - -

{v] the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the and of each accounting year 3.30 14.45

(v} the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such date when the
Ivterast dues abuvee e aclually pold to the small enterprise, for the putpuse vl disallowance of a deduetlble
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20006, - -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on ths basis of information collected by the Management.
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IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED

NOTES T0 FORWMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

B - 33t March, 2024 . - 315t March, 2023

NOTE 17A - OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Interest accrued and due an Borrowings 16.04 16.04
16.04 16.04

NOTE 178 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from Customers 287.32 107680
Advance from Cthers [ Refer note no 44) 3,372.20 732326
Other Payables

For Statutory Dues 292,12 493.21
For Capital Goods 17.43 1743
For Employes Benefits ans.14 205,40
Deferred Gavernment Grant-Current 10.02 10.02
4,284.23 9,215.22
{Rs./ Lacs)

‘315t March, 2029

", 313t March; 2023

NOTE 18 - PROVISIONS
Provisicns for Expenses [Current)
Provisions for Expenses {Non -Current)

A 65.92
110.96 2511
111.45 91.03
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IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITEC

NOTES TO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2024

[Rs. fLacs)
[ w {31st-March 2029 -
MNOTE 19 - REVENUE FROM GPERATIONS
Sale Of Products i
Sale of Manufactured Goods 203,72 12,702.02
Sale of Raw Materials

Manganese Ore 30709 F71.92

Carbon paste 5.65 -

Store ltems 341.33 -
Cther raw Materials 149.36 23796
Coal & Coke 229,15 584.80
M35 SCRAP 230,46 21.70
Colomite 051 1397

Iron Ore 180.0% -

Fig Iron 1,101,95 -
2,750.21 14,338.17

{Rs. fLacs)

NOTE 20 - OTHER JINCOME

Other Income G117 ¢.10
Sale of Services 1,130.4% -
Accrued Interest on FO 203 -
Interest on Securlty Deposit with DVC - 24.62
Allowances for expected credit loss - 44.84
Sundry Balances Written Back - 1,295,01
Gavernment geant -curcant 10,02 10.02
1,142.71 1,374.59
(Rs./ Lacs)
315t March'2024 5.0 1 i 315F March 2023 :
NOTE 21 - COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
{Including cost of raw material sold)
Raw materials at the beginning of tha year 1,115.88 1,115.88
Add : Purchases 16.94 10,868.94
1,132.32 11,934.82
Less ; Raw imaterials at the and of the year - 1,115,858
Cost of Materials Consumed 113737 10,868.94
Nota:Cost of material consumed represent cost of RM Sold for the year 2023-2024
[Rs./ Lacs)
315t March 2024 - - . 31k March 2023
NOTE 22 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & WORK IM PROGRESS
Iny les at the beginning of the period
Finished Goods 1,300 41 2,501.56
Work-In-Progress 12243 141,55
1422.89 262311
¢ ies at the closing end of the peiod
Finished Goods - 1,300.41
Work-In-Progress - 122.48
- 1,422.89
1,422.8% 1,200.22
3TstMarch 2024 . .-~ .31st March 2023,
NOTE 23 - Purchase of Trading Goods - 120,17
- 12017
(Rs./ Lacs)

...« 315t Mareh 2024

- st March 202

NOTE 24 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, wages & bonus 29,03 5705
1003 57.05

[Rs./ Lacs)

315t March 2024, -

NOTE 25 - FINANCE CO5TS

R e e e e T

Interest Expense 0.28 .54
Other Borrowing Casts 1.00 0.42
- 1.28 0.96

.
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IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED
NOTES YO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024
{Rs./ Lacs)
: 31st March 2024, . - R
NOTE 26 - OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts { fiefer note no (a) below) 458,57 952.35
Packing Materials 1.50 47.64
Power [Refer Note {b) below] 213 4,892.62
Rates & Taxes - 0.03

Repairs & Maintenance B -
- Bullding 29318 £3.75
- Plant and Machinery s83.81 937

- Othets 2.40 -
Insurance 1.85 729
Manufacturing Expenses i15.81
Vehicie Hire & Malntenance Charges 0.18 6.46

Directors' Sitting Fees - -
Auditors' Remuneration {Refer Note [¢) below] 5.30 5.43
Carriage outward -Domestic . 3.65
Lepal & Professional Charges . 1.67 2.80

Security Charges 1.50 -
Miscellanecus Expenses 23,52 32.06

Allowances for expacted credit loss F07.13 -

Sundry Balances Written off 174.92 -

Cost of setvices 1O70.09 -
3.028.81 6,164.25

a) Consumption of Stares & Spares under Other expenses for the year ended 31st march'24, eepresenting Rs. 458.57 Lakhs betng cost of aforsald items sofd, I
b} Power includes following expenses incurred on the operation of captive power plant:-
N (Rs. tac)
31t March 2024 o7 3151 Maarch 2023

Cost of Ml .qh (‘mnumrrl roml, Coke and nninrhar
Inventory at the beginning of the year - 45.73
Add; Purchases during the year 213 58.95

Lese: Trangferrod to Ferro slloya division/Selea -
Less: Inventory at the end of the year -

Consumption { Including cost of raw material Sold) .13 104,68
Consumption of Stores and Spares - 75.18
Repairs & Malntenance _
- Building .
- Plant and Machinery - aye
- Others - -
hurerind Hondling Lepenaes - -
Vehicle Hire & Malntenance Charges - .10
2.13 159.74
Cost of Power - Purchased from DvE
- 4,702.89
Total 213 4,892.62
{Rs.f Lacs)

e 2, S R Y
<) Auditor's Remuneralion
i} Te Statutory Auditor
a) For Statutory Audit 235 2,35
b For Tax Audit 0.85 0.60
¢} Far Limited Review 1.20 i.20
d) For Other Services 080 0.80
il} To other Auditors - 0.48
=30 5.43
[Rs.f Lacs)
315t March 2024 3lst March 2023
Note 27 : Ratio Analysis:
CRatio -0 1T T Numerater/Denomir - - | F¥.2023-24 | F.¥.202223 Change (%) ~ [Reasen for Change, .
Due to decrease in cutrent
Current ratio assets aad ingrease in current
Currant Assets/Current Liabilities 0.03 0.26 87.38 |Niabilities
Debt-equity ratio Total Long term debt {including current maturity) Due to change in Iong term e, :
/Sharehaolder’s Equity (0.87} 0.95) 9.71 |Debt & shareholders equiw. BJ ré.z;\
i,
. X Earning Before Depraciation, Interest & Tax/interest
Deht service coverage ratio on long term & short term debt + Principal repayment 5
of long term & Short term debt A [T NA | HA K()ln ats - 46
Return on equity ratip Due to change in slaa
e L Net Profit after Tax/Avarage shareheldar's Equity 0.1g 0.13 20.89 |equity ¥ n o
inventory furnover ratio Cost of Goods Sold/Average lnventory 1.72 2.91 40.73 | Gue Lo change in lnventoer ke
Trade recelvables turnover ratio et Credit Sales/vg. Accounts Receivable £.65 27,60 68.67 | Improvement in realisation - .
Trade payables turnover ratio ) Being negligibale purchases
Met Credit Purchass/Avg. Accounts Payable 0.001 0.8% 99.87 | made during the year
Net capital turngver ratio Net Sales/Working Capital [0.13) 10.50) 85.11 { Decrease in Net sales.
Net profit ratio et Profit/Met Sales [1.08) [0.23) (362.36)| Due to higher loss and low
Return on capital employed ) ) Due to loss comparad to"gy
Earning Gefore Interest & Tuw/Capital Employed 0.10 3.23 97.00 rturnover @f
) . Time Weighted Value of Return on Investment/ A NIl NATTRIT Iy
Return on investment Time Welghted Value of hivest
ime Welghted Value of luvestiment Investment}] Investment) n Fasrm L . 2,-\ i Kﬁt :
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IMPEX FERRQ TECH LIMITED

NOTES TQ FORMING PART GF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

NOTE ; FINGENT DABILITIES B COMMUFMENTS s Asat 31stMarch, 2024 - Az at J1siMarch; 20
Contingent Liabilities not provided for in the books of accounts in respect of: —
Clalms against the Company not ach ledged as debts :
{a} Government Claims
(i} Central Excisa Act, 1944 { deposits made under protest 31st March 2024: 8s. 12,68 lacs, 315t March, 26232 : s, 12.69 lacs) 1,812.99 181992
(it} Income Tax Act, 1961 {deposits made under protest 31st March, 2024: Nil, 31st March, 2023: Nil) 21,159.41 20,026.94
(ii1} Central Szles Tax and Local Sales Tax Act {deposits made under protast 31st March, 2024: 28,43 facs, 315t March, 2023: Rs. 88.43
lacs}) 1,696.12 1,865.71
(iv] W.E Entry Tay Act 504.91 504,91
(¥} DVC Arrear bills for FY 2017-18 to 2012-20 | Refer note no 39] 968,54 -
NOTE29
Defined Contribution Plan:
ER -+ 31st March 2024 Alst March 2023

Reconciliation of the Present Value of the Defined Benelit Cbilgation and the Fair
Value of Plan Assets:

Fresent Value of funded sbligation at the end of the year 6E.91 94.83
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 19.9% 6153
Net Asset /[ Liabllity} recognised in the Baltance Sheet

{i) Recanciliation of Opening and Closing balances of the Present Vatue of the Defined Benefit Chligation :

Partculars faa P P R P i ) o 3lstMarch 20247 | 31st march 2023

{a) Balance at the beginning of the year 9484 £8.20
(b} Current service cost 2.18 835
fcl Interast cost 687 £.23
{d) Actuarial (gains} f dosses recogaised in other comprehensive income

- financial assumptions 013 {z2.83)
- expetience adjustment 396 {5.02)
- dernographic assumptions

fe) Past setvice cost - [vested benefit) - -
{f) Benefits paid {45.07) -
Balance at the end of the year 68.91 94.84
[ii} Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets and

Partgidars SR REREE " 315t March 2029 . 31stharch 2023

{a) Balance at the beginning of the year £1.53

{b) Interest income 4.60 4.29
(c} Remneasuraments due to; Actual return on plan asset less intarest on plan asset -1.16 -0.06
[d} Contributions by the employer - -
fe) Acturial Gain/{loss) -
{f) Benefits paid [45.07) -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the ¢lose of the year 19.9% &1.53

i) Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet including a reconciliation of Lhe present value of the delined obligation in (i) and the fair value of the plan assets In (i} to assets

and Wabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet :

Paricy G & e 315t March 2024 . 31st March 2023
Prasent value of defined benefit obligation 6891 G94.84
Tuir value of plan assets 19.99 61.52
Net defined benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet 48.92 [33.31}
{iv} Amount recognised In the Profit and Loss Account are as follows :

Partcilar =315t March 202450 ] 5 3151 March 202

Current service cost 218 8.25
Interast cost 219 1.94
Expected return on plan assets B -
Acturlal Gainf{loss)

A t charged to of Profit and Loss 10.37 10.19
(v} R income

Paricolar 315t March 2024

Actuarial loss {gain) arising on defined benefit ohligation from 4.09 [7.85)
Actual return on plan asset less interest on plan asset 1.16 0.06
Amcunt recognised in other comprehensive income 5.25 [7.79)




IMPEX FERINO TECH LIMITED
NOTES TO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDER 315T MARCH, 2024

{vi} Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the detemination of the defined benefit obligation are discaunt rate,expected salary increase and mortality, The sensitivity analysis below

have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the prigns occurring at the end of the reporting period,while holding all other assurmptions constant,
The resuits of sensitivity analysis is given balow:
e - 31stMarch2ozd U 3dst March 2623
. i Decrease’ | . Wcrease B
Decrease] on present value of defined benefits ohlizaticn

at the end of the year

Discount rate [-/+%}

(% thange comparad to base due to D72 -0.62% 12.73% -10.76%
senitivity)

Salary sscalation rate (-/+3%)

(% change compared to base due to -0,35% -0.25% -10.52% 11.99%
|senithvity)

{vii) Maturivy

incrasse 7 315t March 2024, 315t March 2623 5.
Year 1 R
Year 2 0.06
Year 3 .67
Year 4 n.o8
Yaar5 0.08
Next 5 Years .51

Hviiﬂg.'ﬂ?ﬁéd_t‘;‘ateﬁﬁ'rlg_s_;'_if__l?l_a_h‘-ﬁs"set_.'f.as_'-ia"bercenlé’ge_of.‘rot'émssetsas-at.31.0_3.2'022_:\‘_ LI i T L e L Mstiarch 2024 [+ 31st March 2013
|Quaiifying thsurance Policy ! 100%j

“fix) Actiirial assifing

a. .Dls.count Rate .50
b. Salary Escalation Rate 5.00%
e I ! R 10084

MNOTE 30 - SEGMENT REPORTING

As the company's business activity f2lls within a single significant privoary segment i.e, "Ferro Alloys™ | no separate sepment information is disclosed.
ng 2

MOTC 31 - RELATED PARTY DHSCLOSURE
Related Parties where control exists Nil

(i} Related Parties with whom transactions have token place :

a) Key Managerial Personnel lr. Subham Bhagat, Chairman cum Managing Director
Mr. Aritro Roy, Independent Director
Mrs. Sujata Agarwal, Independent Director
Mr. Sharat Malik, Independent Director
Mr. Debashish Mukherjee, Independent Director
Mz, Ranjeer Kumar Burnwal Resigned on 07/02/2023)
M. Sanjeet Kr. Gupta, Chief Financial Officer
{Resigned from 11/04/2024)
Ms. Richa Lath, Company Secretary
(Resigned from 11/0472024)

{b) Enterprises in which divector is interested Ankit Meral & Power Limited

(Ch Enterprises owned or significantly Influenced by the key Managerlal Personne! Asthbhuja Properties Pyvr Lid.
or their relatives:

LU
(RO
Kotk - z/‘ g
. f/J

ke]
{\Y
//?"-:/
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IMPEX FERRD TECH LIMITED
NOTES TQ FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

{il} Transactions with related parties referred to above, in erdinary course of the business, are as under:

[Rs.f Lacs)
For the year 2023-24 "] - - For the year2022:23 7

Managerial Remunération
Subham Bhagat 3.00] 3.70
Ranjest Kumar Burnwal . 3.70,
Purchase of Goods
Ankit Metal & Power Ltd, 2,51 3,092.42
Sales of Finished Goods
Ankit Metal & Power Limited 32.35 955,47

(Rs.f Lacs}
-BlstMarch 2024 | ¢ 31st March 2023

; Particular ;
Qutstanding Balances ag at 31.03.2024

Managerial Remuneration Payable

Subham Bhagat 913 6.12
Ranjeet Kumar Burnwal 3.70 3.70
Trade Receivable

Ankit Metal & Power Lirnited . -

Trade Payable

Ankit Metal & Power Limited E 50133
Unsecured Loan

Asthbhuja Properties Put. Ltd. 21800 218.00

Transactions with related parties have been disclosed for the period of existence of relationship. Previous yesr transactions with parties that have ceased 1o be rofated parties in the current year
have been excluded in above details as the relationship did not exist,

NOTE 32 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

: i Ll T Particalars S . 315t March 2024 315t March 2023} :
Welghted average nurnber of Equity Stares cutstanding during 1he year [No. in Lacs) 87032 £79.32

Number of Shares Considered as weighted average shares and potential shares outstanding for calculation of Dituted Earnings Per
Share {in Lacs) 87932 879,32

Profit after Tax attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. in Lacs) {2,982.85) 13,359.78)

Nominal Yalue of Ordinary Shares (Rs.) 10,00 10.00

|€arpings Per Share [Basic) {Rs.) {3.39) (3.82)
Earnings Per Share {Diluted) {Rs.) (Refer Note below) }3.39) [3.32)

NOTE 33

Other Regulatary Information

1) The Company does not have any benami property Fulher thera ars no processings intitated or are perding against the Company for holding any benami praperty under Prohibitation of Benami
Property Transaction Act, 1288 and rules made there under.

2) The Company does not have any charge or satisfactlon which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory poried .

3} The Company does not have any transactions with Cormpanles struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 fo the Companies Act, 1956,

4} The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the linancial year.

5] The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(s) including foreign antities {mtermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediaries shalk:

1. Directly or indirectly lend or invast in other persons or entities in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Compang{Utlimate benefictaries); or

II. Provided any guarantee security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate benefliclaries.

The Company has not received any funds from any other persen(s) or entity(s}, inchuding foreign entities {funding parties} with the undersianding {whether recorded in wriling or otherwise) that
the Company will;

I. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persens or entlties identified in any manner whatsoevor by or on behalf of the funding party (Utlimate beneficiaries); or

il. Provided any guarantee, securlty or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

&) The Company has ne such transactlon which is not recarded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclased as income during the year in the Lax assessments under the Income
Tox Act, 1961,
7} The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any Bank ar Financial Institution or other lender.

8) The Company has complied with the number of layers preseribed under clause{87) of sectlon 2 of the Compariies Act, 2013 read with the Companies [Restriction on nuimber of Layers) Rules, 2017

9) The Company has not filed any scheme of arrangements in terms of sectian 230 to 237 of the Company’s Act, 2013 with any Competent Authority,
10} The Company has done an assessment to identify Core Investment Coinpanies (CICs) in the group as per the relevant guidslines fssued by Reserve bank of India read with Core Investment
Companies [Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. Based on the same, no company has been identified as a CIC in the aroup,




IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED
NOTES TO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS $OR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

HOTE 34

Hor'ble National Company Law Tribunal {(NCLT), Kolkata Bench vide order dated 2nd May, 2024 has commenced Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP} against the Company undear|
Sectlon 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 {IBC), based on the apelication filed by one of its Operational Crediter of the Company, Mr. Rajiv Kumar Agarwala {IP Registration No.|
1BBI/IPA-001/IP-PO0552/2017-18/10982) has been appointed as Interim Resciution Professionat {IRP} with effect from Znd May, 2024 under the provision of IBC. Subsequently Mr. Ashok Kumar
Sarawagi [ IBBI/IPA - Q01/IP-PO0171/2017-2018/10340) was appainted as Resolution Professional [RP} by the Committee of Creditors (CoC} vide its 2nd CoC mesting held on 14th June, 2024 as
appraved by virtue of e - voting by the Cot members and further vide order dated $2th July,2024 by the Honourable court of NCLT, Kolkata, The above financisl statements have been prepared i
accordance with indian Accounting Standard  [Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the companies Act 2013 read together with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
reviewed, and signed by Resolution Professional as the power of the boards are suspended due to commencement of the CIRP process.

NOTE 35

The Company has been referred to NCLT by one of its operational creditors and consequently CIRP has beer initiated. The Company has incurrsd loss of Rs.2,982 85 lakhs for the year ended 31st
March, 2024 and accumidated loss as on 31st March, 2024 is Rs.45003.32 lakhs which is in excess of the entire net worth of the campany. The Compary's ability to meet |13 contractual and
financial obligation is dependent on the resolution of the matter as a part of CIRP, Currently the conpany is in the process of identifying the resofution altermatives, and have invited Prospective
Resolution Applicant and accordingly the financial statements are at presant being prepared on a going concern basis. The future prospects of the company to remzin 23 a going concern shall be
subject to resolution plan, if any received and being approved by the Committer of Creditors and the Honorable NCLT,

NOTE 36

Varicus credit facilities availed from United Bank of tndia (URI),Bank of Barods (BOB) and State Bank of India (381) have been assigned in lavour of Rare Assat Reconstruction Lid under assignrment
agreemants between banks and Rare Asset Reconstruction Ltd. In absence of Information about the terims of assignments, the company is carrying the various credit facilities as appearing in the
books as per the previous terms with the respective banks as shown under non current borrowings.

The lenders {RARE} have submitted thelr ¢laim and as admitted by RP amounting to Rs.91068.97 lacs which includes principal of Rs.28048.75 lacs and cumulative intergst of Rs. £3020.22 lacs
{Interest for the year Rs. 10658.95 lacs). The principal amaunt lying in the boeks is Rs.26759.99 lacs and the differeatial amaunt from claim admitted is under reconciliation, The interast and penal
interest as mentioned above remain unprovided for in the books. The same may have consequentialimpact on the 1epurted financial for the quarter and year ended 315t March, 2024 as well as|
earlier petiods. Since the aforesaid known accounts had been declared NPA from the financial year 2014, the staterment of stocks and book debts are not submitted 1o banks or financial
instituition.

NOTE 37
As a part of Corporate Insoivency Resolution Process (CIRP), creditors of the company were called to submit their claims to the Resolution Professional (RP}. The summary of clairn till 10th June
2024 (as published) is shown hereunder:

Amount of Amaunt of
. R Claims Amount of claim under
Particulars Clafms K K .
. admitted by varification
submitted
HP

Secured Financial Creditors 9L068.97  91,068.97
Unsecured Financial Credleors ,153.88 - 6,153,858
Operational Creditors (Employees) 11.54 11.59
Operational Creditors (Govt. Dues) 39,49%.23  51,157.88 13,341.3%
Operational Creditors {Other than above)} 300,36 278.12 22.24

The party-wise reconciliation of outstanding balances appeating In books of account vis-a-vis claims submitled and adnigsion of claim by RF is under process. This is an ongemg process till the
approval of the resofution plan and the balances are subject to updation and reconciliations. Hence censequentisl impact If any on the financials is not currently ascertainable and no accounting
adjustment has been mada in the books of accaunts for differences.

NOTE 38

The manufacturing opzration of the plant of the company situated at Kalyanesher], West Bengal has been temporarily shut down since October, 2022 dus to disconnection of power supply by the
Damodar Vally Carposation [DVC] and the same has been intimated to the stock exchange pursuant te Regulations 30 the SERI [Listing Obligationg and Disclosure Requiremants) Regulations,
2015. The security deposlt with DVC in the form of bank guarantee amounting 1o Rs, 950 lakhs has been invoked and olher deposit of Rs, 742 lakhs Iying with BVC also adjusted during the|

financlal year 2072-23,

NOTE 39

With reference to non payment of arrear bills of Rs. 963.54 lakhs {electricity charges) in the F.Y. 2022-23, computed by Damodar Vally Corporation [DVC] i terms of Tanlf Order issued by West]
Bengal Electricity Regulatory Commission (WBERC) pertaining to F.Y. 2017-18 to 2019-20, Damodar Vally Corporation Consumer’s Association on behalf of its members, has challenged the said
TarHF Order before the Hon'ble Appellate Tribunal for Electricity [APTEL}. The Hon'ble APTEL vide its order dated 215t June , 2022 has granted a interlm stay on payment of arrears being|
demanded in terms of Tariff Order of the WBREC. Accordingly, the aforesaid demand has not been considered as sxpenses in the F.Y. 2023-24 and not provided for in the financial statements for
the year ended 215t March,2024
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IMPEX, FERRO TECH LIMITLD
NOTES TO FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

NOTE 40
The company during the year revamped captive power plant [EPF) and ferrs alloys plant as per the approval & direction of the board, and accordingly a capital expenditure of Rs. 358,77
lakhs(CPP- Rs.1421.01 lakhs and Ferro- Rs. 937.76 lakhs) has been incurred during the year ended 31,/03/2024.

NOTE 41

Insurance coverage of Fived Assets and Plant & Machinery {Including Stocks), has been expired on 13/06/2023 and the same is under process of renewal, l
NOTE 42

As the company's business activity falls within a single significant primary segment i.e, "Ferro Alloys" , no separate segment information is disclosed. l
NOTE 43

Based on evaluation and 2ge wise analysis, it is observed that the credit risk on the aforesaid financial instyUment has increased signlficantly and the management has decided to revize the
expacted credit koss policy and make 100% provision as a precautionary measures on trade recaivable & advance Lo parties outstanding for a period excesding ane year. Accordingly, an amaount
of Rs. 707.13 lakhs has been provided during the financial year for Expected Credit Loss (ECLY and s shown in the statement of profit & loss,

NOTE 44
Advance from others (as per note 178} Includes * 315,70 lacs (P.Y.: "IH {acs) belng certain receipts lying under suspense account in absence of information as to the credits in the bank account.

NOTE 45
In view of litigation and demand by the craditors an amount of Rs. 174.66 Lacs which has written back in carlier vears as ng longer payable has been restored and included in other expenses for

the year ended 31st March 2024,

a6

The balance of “Trada Receivables"”, “Trade Payahles", "Advances from Customers", "Advances Recoverable in cash or Kind® and Advance to Suppliers anid Other Parties” includes balances
remalning outstanding for a substantial period. The balances are subjact to confirmations and recanciliations. The Balance with revenus authorities are subject to final assesment order andfor]
submission of returns. The reported financials might have censequentiaf impact once the confirmation are recieved and reconciliation il aiy is rmade.

NOTE 47
The company has not made any remittance in Forelgn currencies on account of dividend during the year and does not have information a3 1o the extent to which remittance in loreign currencies

oh sccount of dividends have been made on behalf of non - resident shareholdecs,

&
M;
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IMPEX FEARO TECH LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING FART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

48 Financialinstruments and refated disclosures

48.1  Fair values vs carrying amoiznis

The fair values of financial assets and fabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position of 33st March 2024 are a3 follows:

{"inlacs }

Financial assets:
Cther Non Current Financiat Assets - . - - . R .
Trade Receivables - - R - - - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents 44.99 - - - - 44.99 44,99
Cther Bank Balances - . R
Other Current Financial Assats 1.82 - - - - 1.83 1.83

Financial liabiities:

Borrowings _ _26,768.09 - - . 26,78.08 26.758.09
Trade payables 16,811.19 - - - - 16,811,319 14,311.19
Other current financlal labilities 16.04 - - - - 16.04 16.04

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position of 31st March 2023 are as follows:

N inlacs )
Finanulal assets/llabllitles at far valve| Hinancial assets/liabilitles at fair T
Equity
. Instruments Tolal carrying
Particulars Amortised cost ‘Dfa5|gni|ted u‘pon Mandatory designated Maadatory amount Falr value
initial recognition Ve
upen initial
recognitian
Financial assets:
Dther Non Current Financial Aszets 46.13 - - - - 46.13 4613
Trade Receivables 636.00 - . - - 636.09 636.09
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1230 - - - - 12.30 12.30
Other Bank Balances - - -
Other Current Financial Assets - - - - - -
|Financial Ifabilities:
Borrowlngs 26,769.50 - - - - 20,769.50 26,765.50
Trade payables 12,150.42 . - - . 12,150.42 12,150.92
Other current financial liabilities 18.04 - - - - 16,04 16.04

48.2 Fair value measurement

[

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchange in a carrent transsction batween willing parties,
other than in forced or liquidation sale,

The Company has established the following falr value hierarchy that categorics the value into 2 levels, The inputs o valuation technigues used to measure fair value of
financial instruments are:

Level 1: The hierarchy uses quoted (adjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The fuir value of all bonds which are tradod in the stock exchanges is
valued using the closing price or dealer quotations as at the reporting date.

Level 2: The falr value of financial instrumants that are not traded in an active market {for exarple traded bonds, over the counter der walives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable markar data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: Ifone or maore of the significant inputs is net based on oheervable rmarket data, the instrument is included in Leyel 5.
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Financlal assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements as at 31 March 2024

{"in lacs )
Particulars Level T Level 2 Level 3 Talal
Total financial assets - - B .
Total financial liabilities . . - .

Financlak assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements as at 31 March 2023

(Mintacs)
|Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totak
Total financial assets - - . .
Total financial liabilitias - - - -

The management assessed that trade recaivables, cash and cash equivalant, trade payable, cash credits and olher flinancial assels and liabilities approximate thefr carrying
amounts largely due 12 the short term malurities of there instrumens.

4% Financial risk management

Risk management framewark
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprises of borrowings, and trade and other payables, The main purpose of Lhese financial liabilities is to finance the Company
operations. The Company's principal financiai assets include trade and other receivables, investments and cash and cash equivatents that derive directly from its operations,

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, eredit risk and liguidity risk. The Company’s primary risk managament focus is ta
minimise potential adverse effects of market risk on its financisl performance. The Comnpany uses derivative linancial insteuments to mitigate foreign exchange related risk
exposures. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual charactesistic of each ¢ustomer and the concentration of risk from the top few
customers. The Company's rlsk management assessment and policies and pracesses are established ta ideatify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, 10 sel appiop iste
risk limits and controls, and to monltar such risks and compliance with the same, Risk 1t and 1t policies and processes are reviswed regularly to reflect
<hanges in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

This note presants information about the Company's exposure 19 each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and pracesses for measuring and managing risk.
/|

The Company bas exposure to the following risks arising from financial instrurments:

(i} Credit risk
{ii} Liquiclivy risk
(i} Market risk

M Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument faiis to meet its conlractual obligaticns, and arises principaily from
the Company's receivables from customers and loans. In addition, credit risk arises from finance giarantees. Company's credit risk arises prinripally from the trade raceivabies
and cash & cash squivalents. Customer credit risk is managed centrally by the rampany through eredit approvals estoblishing ercdit limits and continuusty suuniloriog e
credit worthiness of the custamers to whom the credit is extended in the pormal course of business, The concentration of credit risk is limited due the (¢t that the customer
base is large and unrelated.The company estimates the Expected Credit Losses on the basis of its evaluation of sach case.Provision is being made as per the Company's
expected credit loss policy in the manner mentioned below:

Overdue for more than 1year but not more than 2 years 5%
Overdue for more than 2 years but not more than 4 years 5%
COwerdue for more than 4 years S0%

Credit risk from balances with banks are managed in accardance with the company's policy,

Exposure to credit risks
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk. The masimum exposure Lo eredit risk as of March 31, 2029 and tarch 31,
2023 are as follows:

{"inlacs)

Particulars 31st March 31st March
0249 2023

Cash and cash equivalents 44,99 13,30
Other Bank Balances 23.44 12.44
Loans and other receivables 370.43 1,332.69
Trade accounts and notes receivable, 411 00 63600
net
Total §49.85 1,994.52

The ageing of trade accounts and notes receivable as of 31st March , 2024 & 31ct Wiarch, 2025 are as follows:

{"inlacs)
IParticulars 315t March 31st March
20249 2023
Not Due - -
Over due less than 3 month - 232.59
3 months - 12 months - 119,82 i
Over 12 months 411.00 282.68 ’ f!
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Trade receivables are primarily unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from custemers, Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and
by contirously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. As per simplified approach, the
Company makes provislon of expected credit loss on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default payments and makes appropriate provisions at
each reporting date whenever is for longer period and involves higher risk.

Movement in Impairment loss account is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning 97.39 142.23
Impairment loss recognisedf reversed 70713 {a4.84)
Amounts written-back - -
|Balance at the end 804.52 97.39

{iit  Wiquidity risk

Liguidity risk is definad as the rigk that the Company will not be able ta seltle or meet its obligations on Lime or at ressonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management imples
mairtaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an ad ameunt of credit (acilitles to meet obligations when due. The
Company's finance team is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlemant management. in addition, Proensses and policies related to such risks are overszen by senior

ar 1t monitors the Corpany's liquidity position theough rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash Hows. The Company’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that 1t will always have sufficient liquidity, subject to its restructuring proposals, to reet its liabilities when due, under both nermal and
stressed conditions.

In the oplnlon of the management, the company's cash flow from business, borrowing or financing would be sufficient to meet the cash requirnents for ils operation with
support of [ts lenders as the company ability to mest its obligation and its linsncing is depnedent on the resclution or matter under CIRE.

Exposure to ligquidity risk

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual matuelties of fnancial batiiities af the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted gayments
subject tom resolution plan under CIRP

I"inlaes)
31 March 2024 Less than Lyear | 1-Syears > 5 years Total
Borrowings 8.10 26,759,959 26,763.05
Trade payables 16,811.19 - - 16,811.19
[Other non - current financial llabilities R R R B
Gther curcent financial liabifities {Ineluding current maturities of borrowings) wGos| T 16.04
31 March 2023 Less than 1year | 1.5 years > 5 years Total
|Borrowlngs .21 2:,762.59 26,769,50
Trade payables 12,1542 - - 12,150.42
Other non - current financial liabilities - R . R
Other current financhal liabilties {including current maturities of borrowings) 16.04 . - 16.04




fiii}  Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, falr value or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument . The value of a financial
instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commaodity prices, equity prices and other market changes that effect
market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive linancial instruments including investments and deposits, forgign currency receivables,
payables and borrowings. The goal of market risk manragement is optimization of profit and controling the exposure to market risk within acceptable limirs,

(a)  Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the Hisk impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate dus to changes in foraign exchange rates,
The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates refatas piimartly to the impart of raw materials and spare parts, and exports of finished goods.

Exposure to currency risk
The Company's expasire to foreign currency are at the end of the reportlng period arz as follows:
{ iniacs)

In original

Particulars curency In Rupees
[UsD/EURO)

31 March 2624
Trade receivables - B
Cash and cash equivalents - _
Qther financial assets . -

Borrowlngs lincluding current maturitiss of iong-term debt) - -
Trads payables R
Derivatives | | _ N

L e:ipoesure In respect of recognised financial assets and liabilities - -

[Minlacs)

L owlginat
Partizulars currency T Rupnes
{USD/EURQ)

31 March 2023
Trade receivables - E
Cash and cash equivalents -
Other financlal assets

[Borrawings (inctuding current maturities of Tong-term dubr)
Trade payables B
Derivatives | |

Net exposure in respect of recognised linancial assets and hiabllitics - -
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Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening [weakening) of the USD against Indian rupee at 315t March would have affected the measurement of financlal instruments denominated
in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amount shown belsw. This snalysis assumes that all ather varialles, in particular interest rates , remain
constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

[Minfacs)
Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening | Weakening
31 March 2024
USD {5% Movement) NIL NIL ML [
31 March 2023
|usb {53 Mavement) NIL NIL ML MIL
{b}  Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash Aows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becavse of charges in market interast rates. The Company exposure
o the risk of changes in rmarket interest rates redared primarify to the Company's short term borrowing with Mloating interest rates, The Corpany constantly monitors the
cradit markets and rebalances its financing strategles to achisve an aptimal maturity profile and financing cost.
Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Carmpany 's interest bearing financial instrurments at the end of the reporling pariod are as foliows:
[inlacs }
Particulars 31 March 2024 33 March 2023
Fixed rate Instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities
Floatlng rate nstruments
Tnancial assets
Flnanclal katalitias 20,76 O 16,763.50
26,768.00 206, 765.50
Sensitivity analysis
Fixed rate instruments that are cartied at amortised cost are not subject b interest rate vick for the purpose of sensitive analysis,
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A reasanably possible change of 100 basis points in varlable rate instruments at the repoling dates would heve increased or decreased profit or loss by the amounts shown
Prolit or loss Equity, net of tax
Particulars — ' - ik \" i -
Streng 4 Weal Strenglhening | Weakening
31 March 2024
Variable rate Instruments 268 [268) 198 {198)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 268 {268) 198 {158)
31 March 2023
Varialde rate instruments 268 (263} 198 [198)
Cash flow sensitivity [net) 268 {268) 198 (198)
{c}  Equity price risks
The Company ks not exposed ko equity risks arising from gquity investments. Cuity investiments are held for stestergic rather than trading purposes. The Company does not
{d)  Hedge accounting

Lurrency risk-Transactions in foreign curcency

The Company is exposed to transactional foreign currency tisk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales and interest rate exposures are
denominated. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are U dollars, The Company buys and sells derivatives, and also incurs financial
Ilabilities, in order to manage market risks, All such transactions are carried out ag per the risk management policy of the Company.

The Company halds derivative finantial instruments such as foreign eurrency forward to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on loreign currency exposures. The
Ce ¥'s risk policy is to hedge its foreign currency exposure in respect of firm commitments and tighly probable forecastad wranscations and interest rate

rigks. The counterparty for these contracts is genera'ly a bank or 3 financial institution.

The Company determires e existence of an cconomic refationship betwesen the hedging instrument and hedged item based on the currency, amount and timing of thelr
respective cash flows, The Company assesses whether the derivative designated in each hedging relationship is expected to be and has been eFective in olisetting changes in
cash flows of the hedged item. In order to designate a derivative contract as an effective hedge, the management objectively evalustes and eviderce with appropriate
underlying dacuments of each contract whether the contrsct is effective in olfsetting cash flow attributable to the hedged rigk,

In these hedglng refationships, the main suurces of ingifectlveness aro :

- the effect of the caunterparty and the Company's own cridit sk on the fair value of Lhe farward gachange contracts, which is not reflacted in the change in the fair value of
the hedged cash flows attributable to the change in exchange rates; and

- changes in the timlag of the hedged transactions.




Interest rate risk

The Company adopts a policy of hedging its certain interast rate risk exposure is at a lixed rate. This is achieved partly by entering into fixed-rate instruments and partly by
horrowing at & floating rate.

The Company determines the existence of an economic relationship between the hedging instrument and hedped item based on Lhe reference interast rates, tenors, repristng
dates and maturities and the notional of hedglng instruments or par amounts of hedged items,

Capital Management [lnd A3 1)

The fundamental goals of capital management are to:

- safeguard thair ability to continue as a going concern, subject to note no. 35 so that they ¢an continue to provide returns lor shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and

- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Beard of Directors has the primary responsibility ts maintain a strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through prudent management of deployed funds and
leveraglng opportunities in domestic and international financial markets so as to malntain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
businass,

For the purpose of Company's capital ¢ 2 capital Includes i<sued capital and all other equity reserves. The Company manages its capital structure in light of changes
in the economic and reguiatory environment and the reguirernents of the financial covenants. The Company apphed the same capital risk management strategy that was
applied in the previous period.

The Company manages its copital on the basiz of net debt to equity ratio which is net debt {total borrowings net of cesh and cash equivalents) divided by tolal equity

[ Rs. I lacs]

: 023+

26,768.09 26,761.50

Caszh and bank balances 44,99 12.20
Net Debt 25,723.10 26,757.20
Tota] bquity |30,824.24) {27, 826.12)
Het debt 1o equity ratio {NR7) (0 96)

i) Neht is defined as Non-Current Rorrowings, Current Borrowings and Cureent Maturities of Mon-Current Borrowings.

[ Wolkata 26
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IMPEX FERRO TECH LIMITED
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2024

51 Chief Financial officer and company secretary of the company has resigned w.e.f 11/04/2024 and the compeany is in the process of
recruiting the same.

52 Previous year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever considered necessary 1o conform to
this year's classification. Accordingly, amounts and other disclosures for the preceding years are included as an integral part of the
current year financial statements and are to be read in relation to amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year,

| As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board

For JBS & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E .
SN BETE
N~ ﬁ O
ﬁ' AN E or Impex ferro Tech Limited
CA Gouranga Paul & £3 Ashok kumar Sarawgi
T S e . .
Partner \ifigreg; 353"5 Resolution Professinal

Membership No: 063711
Place: Kolkata
28th Octoher, 2024
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